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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 
 

Dear Shareholders,  

Good Morning ladies and gentlemen, I have much pleasure in 
welcoming you all to the third (03rd) Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL) 
and present the audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 2023-24. I thank each one of you for making it 
convenient for sparing your valuable time for this meeting. 

 

About the Company 

It is my privilege to place before you, highlights of IrconASEL for the FY2023-24. 

Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”) has been awarded the work of construction of Eight Lane 
access-controlled Expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli Section-SPUR of 
Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (‘the Project’) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity 
Mode (HAM) under Bharatmala Pariyojana (Phase II-Package XIV), in accordance with the 
Concession Agreement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition 
stipulated in Letter of Award issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its 
wholly-owned subsidiary and a Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project. 

It is my privilege to place before you, few highlights of IrconASEL for the FY2023-24. 

IrconASEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 27th January, 2022 and the 
concession period of the project comprises of construction period 548 days from the appointed 
date i.e., 10th November 2022 and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial 
Operation Date (COD). IRCON was appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project 
work. 

As per financial model, the adjusted Bid Project Cost is Rs.1388.85 crore. The 40% of the 
project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction phase and balance 60% will be 
receivable after construction in the form of Annuity that will be financed during construction by a 
mix of debt and equity in the ratio of 80:20. 

The financial closure has been achieved on 26th August, 2022 and subsequently, the 
appointed date fixed by NHAI is 10th November, 2022.  

Financial Performance 

As on 31st March, 2024, Net Worth of your Company is Rs.6,308.52 lakhs, Total Income is 
Rs.32,401.04 lakhs and Profit After Tax (PAT) is Rs.706.04 lakhs as compared to Net Worth 
of Rs.5,180.33 lakhs, Total Income of Rs.6,584.63 lakhs and Profit After Tax (PAT) of 
Rs.31.39 lakhs in the previous year. 
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Compliances and Disclosures 

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum 
dated 10th July, 2014 and 11th July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises, CPSEs 
constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your 
company. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant 
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public 
Enterprises (DPE) dated 10th March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 21st March, 2024, 
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the 
financial year 2024-25. 
 
Acknowledgements 

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Independent Engineers of NHAI, Ircon 
International Limited, Auditors of the Company and all those who have supported and guided us 
during the year. I express my deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard 
work. And last, but not least, I would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance 
and continuous support. 
 
We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  

 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 

 
                                                        
 

                   Sd/- 
                                                                  (Parag Verma) 

Chairman 
DIN: 05272169 

Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

Dear Members, 
 

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 03rd Annual Report of Ircon 
Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL) together with the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st 

March, 2024. 
 

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S 
AFFAIRS: 
 
Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) was incorporated on 23rd December, 2021 as a Special 
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object to carry the business of Construction of Eight 
Lane access-controlled Expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli Section-
SPUR of Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (‘the Project’) in the State of Maharashtra on 
Hybrid Annuity Mode (HAM) under Bharatmala Pariyojana (Phase II-Package XIV), in 
accordance with the Concession Agreement with National Highway Authority of India 
(NHAI). 
 
IrconASEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 27th January, 2022. As 
per financial model, the adjusted Bid Project Cost is Rs.1388.85 crore. The 40% of the 
project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction phase and balance 60% 
crore will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity that will be financed during 
construction by a mix of debt and equity in the ratio of 80:20. 
 
The financial closure has been achieved on 26th August, 2022 and subsequently, the 
appointed date fixed by NHAI is 10th November, 2022. The concession period of the project 
comprises of construction period of 548 days from the appointed date (i.e., 10th November, 
2022) and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date 
(COD). Presently, the project is in construction phase and in process to achieve respective 
milestones as per the Concession Agreement. IRCON has been appointed as EPC 
Contractor for execution of said project. The operation and maintenance phase shall 
commence on completion of construction. 

 
2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  
 

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the 
Financial Year 2023-24 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).  

 

Financial performance indicators as on 31st March, 2024:                                                                        
   (Rs. in lakh) 

Sl. 
No. Particulars 

For the Year 
ended 

31.03.2024 

For the Year 
ended 

31.03.2023 
1.  Equity Share Capital 434.00 5.00 
2.  Other Equity (includes Reserves and 5,874.53 5,175.33 

D
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Surplus) 
3.  Net Worth  6,308.52 5,180.33 

4.  Borrowings (including current 
maturities) 15,570.00 3,070.00 

5.  Total Assets and Liabilities 29,125.58 12,773.12 
6.  Revenue from Operations 31,877.92 6,542.20 
7.  Other Income 523.12 42.43 
8.  Total Income (6) + (7) 32,401.04 6,584.63 
9.  Profit Before Tax  943.15 42.06 
10.  Profit After Tax 706.04 31.39 

11.  

Earnings Per Equity Share (on face 
value of Rs.10/- per share) 

(i) Basic 
(ii) Diluted  

 
 

21.26 
21.26 

 
 

62.78 
62.78 

 
 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 
 
 The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 
 

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 
head “Other Equity” in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of 
Rs.720.53 Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 31st March, 2024.  
 

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 
 

During the year, the Company has increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.5 lakhs 
to Rs.17.50 crore and Paid-up Share Capital from Rs.5 lakhs to Rs.4.34 crore.  
 
At the end of the FY 2023-24, the Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital 
of the Company is Rs.17.50 Crores comprising of 1,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 
each and Rs.4.34 Crores comprising of 43,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 
respectively. Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share 
capital of IrconASEL. 
 
As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary 
(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialized form. 
 

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 
 
The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.9447.73 
lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 
For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate 
Companies of the Company. 
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 
 

Board of Directors: 
 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 
2023-24 
 

During the year under review, the holding Company (IRCON) had nominated Mr. Yogesh 
Kumar Misra [having DIN:07654014], as the Part-time (Nominee) Director of your Company 
vice Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma w.e.f. February, 01, 2024. Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma 
ceased to be the Director of your Company consequent to withdrawal of his nomination by 
the holding Company (IRCON) w.e.f. January, 31, 2024. 

 
As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by 
the holding company (IRCON). 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, total number of Director is Four (4) including Chairman nominated 
by IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows: 

 
Category, Name & 
Designation 

DIN Date of Appointment or Change in 
designation (during the year, if 
any) 

Mr. Parag Verma, Chairman 05272169 Regularized at 2nd AGM of the 
Company held on 8th August, 2023 

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra 07654014 Appointed as Additional Part-time 
(Nominee) Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 1st February, 2024 

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma 08556821 Ceased to be the Part-time 
(Nominee) Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 31st January 2024 

Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 -  
Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 - 

 
After the closure of the financial year, the Holding Company, IRCON has nominated Ms. 
Yamini Sahib, GM (Finance-HQ), IRCON, (DIN:10686600) as Nominee Director w.e.f. 27th 
June, 2024. 
 
Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra and Ms. Yamini Sahib, Directors, were nominated by IRCON as 
Additional Part-time (Nominee) Directors of the Company w.e.f. 1st February, 2024 and 27th 
June, 2024 respectively, who shall hold office upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
The Company has received a notices under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from 
Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra and Ms. Yamini Sahib giving their candidatures for appointment as 
Directors, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Their 
appointments as Directors by Shareholders is included in the notice of the AGM.   
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors 
of the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your 
Company. Mr. Masood Ahmad shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your 
Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors 
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recommends his re-appointment as Part-time (Nominee) Director and his brief resume is 
annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 
 
Key Management Personnel (KMP): 
 
As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint 
any Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.  
 

8. BOARD MEETINGS: 
 
During the period under review, the Board met Five (5) times on 12.05.2023, 21.06.2023, 
01.08.2023, 02.11.2023 and 31.01.2024. The interval between the two Board Meetings 
were within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail 
of the Board Meetings is as follows: 

 
Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors 

Present 
12.05.2023 4 4 

21.06.2023 4 4 

01.08.2023 4 4 

02.11.2023 4 4 

31.01.2024 4 4 
 

 The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held 
during the period under review and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting 
(AGM): 

Name of Directors Meeting Date Whether 
attended 
last AGM  

Total 
Board 
Meeting 
entitled to 
attend 
during FY 
2023-24 

No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during FY 
2023-24 

% of 
Attendan
ce 

12
.0

5.
20

23
 

21
.0

6.
20

23
 

01
.0

8.
20

23
 

02
.1

1.
20

23
 

31
.0

1.
20

24
 

Mr. Parag Verma      Yes 5 5 100 

Mr. Devendra Kumar 
Sharma 

     Yes 5 5 100 

Mr. B. Mugunthan       Yes 5 5 100 

Mr. Masood Ahmad      Yes 5 5 100 

Mr. Yogesh Kumar 
Misra 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 
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9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ANS BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05th July, 2017 exempted an 
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of 
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC). 

 
IrconASEL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, 
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the 
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. 
 
Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s Office Memorandum (OM) 
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special 
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on 
Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are 
not applicable on IrconASEL. 
 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 
 
a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 
b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 
2024 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 
c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

 
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 
e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

 
11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT’S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT): 
 
The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and 
need no further explanation.  
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There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any 
clarification/ explanation. 
 

12. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 

M/s Rajendra K Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory 
Auditors, for the Financial Year 2023-24 vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/ 
DELHI,IRASEL(1)/331 dated 13th September, 2023. M/s Rajendra K Goel & Co., Chartered 
Accountants have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required under 
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

 

13. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  
 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 
2023-24 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report. CAG vide 
its letter dated 24th June, 2024 has also conveyed NIL comments on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
 
 

14. COST RECORDS 
 
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable to the Company during financial 
year 2023-24. 
 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary was not applicable to the 
Company during the financial year 2023-24. 
 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under 
review. 

 
17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the related party transactions with the holding company, 
IRCON were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved 
in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form 
AOC-2 are enclosed to this report as Annexure –A. 
 
 
 
 
 

shashwat
Text Box
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18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 
No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of 
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, except as 
mentioned in this Annual Report. 
 
 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 

 
A. Conservation of energy: - 

 
Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 

 
B. Technology absorption: - 

 
Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 

 
C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - 

 
There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period 
under review. 
 

20. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/ risk 
to the business of the Company. 

 
21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review. 
 

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
As per Notification dated 05th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 
IrconASEL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the 
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as a 
part of the Directors' Report. 
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23. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under 
review. 
 

24. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its 
members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
25. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for 
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your 
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures 
commensurate with its size and nature of its business. 

 
26. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  

 
No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review. 

 
27. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERNCE POLICY 
 

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crores and 
all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables 
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of 
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to 
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, 
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such 
instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has 
boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 15th July, 2023, to facilitate the financing of trade 
receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment 
before the due date. 
 

28. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  
The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 
on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under the 
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Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 
 
During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to 
sexual harassment was reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

29. VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also 
provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the 
mechanism. Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and 
deputed from IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available 
on the website at https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf. 
 
For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil 
Mechanism, can be addressed to: 
 

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director 
Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL) 
Address: Ircon International Limited, 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 
Phone No.: +91 -9560595062, Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org 

 

30. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 
 
No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 
the financial year 2023-24.   
 

31. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  
 
Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June 2015, sub-
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to 
Directors of Government Company. 

 

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International 
Limited, all part-time Directors of the Company are nominated by the holding company, 
IRCON. The evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per 
pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, 
performance evaluation of Directors is not applicable on your company. 

 
32. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
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33. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 

 
There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 

 
34. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 
 

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines 
dated 10th March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are 
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding 
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary 
companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the 
base year.  
 
Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and 
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON. 
 

10.  

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from 
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the FY 2024-25, in line with the MOU Guidelines 
and IRCON vide its letter dated 21st March, 2024 has granted exemption to the Company. 
 

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/ 
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks, 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and 
look forward to their continued support in the future. 
 
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all 
levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and 
sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during 
the period under report. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, 
solidarity, cooperation and support.  

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
 

                                                        
         

                                                                                                Sd/-  
(Parag Verma) 

Chairman 
DIN: 05272169 

Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE -A 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

      Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the 
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto during the period from 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as 

follows 
 

Note:  
 
1.  Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e., Chief 

Operating Officer (COO) and Head of Finance to IrconASEL and the salary, benefits (like PF, GIS, 
Society deduction, related payments, etc.) and other miscellaneous payment in nature of travelling/ 
ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed on actual cost 
basis.  

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
 Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited           

     
                                                                                              Sd/-  

(Parag Verma) 
Chairman 

DIN: 05272169 
Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 

      Sr. 
No. 

Nature of contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the Contracts or 
Arrangements or 
Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) 
of 
approval 
by the 
Board, if 
any: 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement  
(For Appointing Ircon 
International Limited as EPC 
Contractor for construction, 
maintenance and management 
of Eight lane access controlled 
Expressway from Km 3.000 to 
Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli 
Section – Spur of Vadodara 
Mumbai Expressway) in the 
State of Maharashtra on EPC 
mode under Bharatmala 
Pariyojna (Phase II - Package 
XIV). 

548 days  from 
the appointed 
date and 5 
year O&M 
Period 

Agreement dated 
02nd September, 
2022. 
 
The Contract has 
been awarded to 
IRCON for a 
consideration of 
Rs.1,060.23 crore 
Plus GST. 

(a)  
 

22nd July, 
2022 

Mobilization 
Advance of 
Rs.50 crore. 

2.  
Lease Agreement   
(To take on lease the Office 
Premises of IRCON) 

Two Year 
(01.04.2023 to 
31.03.2025) 

Lease Agreement 
executed on 5th 
April, 2023 for rent 
@ Rs.23,359/- 
p.m. plus GST. 

22nd 
March, 
2023 

NIL   
(as on Date) 

A
O

C
-2
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

J-288, GROUND FLOOR, 

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
SAKET, NEW DELHI-110017 

TO THE MEMBERS OF IReON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statemcnts 

Opinion 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of IRCON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD 
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the "wmpany"), w hich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
3 1 st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss ( including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended 3 1 st March 2024, and the notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary 
of the material accounting policies information and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

This report, revised consequent upon observations of Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India during the course of audit u/s 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended 
31" March 2024, supersedes our earlier report dated I Olh May 2024u/s 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. , 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financia l statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,20 15, as amended, 
(" Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 3 1,2024, the profit and loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 3 I s l March 2024. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section I 43( I 0) of the Companies Act, 20 13. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the [nd AS Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our aud it of the financial statements under the.provisions 
of the Companies Act, 20 13 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI 's Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the aud it evidence obta ined by us is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Kcy Audit Matters 

Key audit matters a re those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current financial year. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 
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• CONTINUATION SHEEt.. .. 

Revenue Recognition in terms of Ind AS 115 : "Revenue from Contracts with NHAI" 

Accounting Standard on Revenue which prescribes five steps revenue recognition model. 
The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after 
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The 

recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in 
work scope, claims (compensation, rebates etc.) and other payments to the extent 
performance obligation is satisfied. 

In the contracts where performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the 
output method is applied, which faithfully depict the Company's performance towards 
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. As such the company recognizes 
revenue on the basis of stage of completion based on the proportion of contract cost 
incurred, relating to the total costs of the contract at completion. Thus, the recognition of 
revenue is based on estimates in relation to total estimated costs of each contract and cost 
incurred . . 

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the 
relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with 
their customers. . 

The Further Explanation why we consider this as a Key Audit Matter is as follows: 

The application of the revenue accounting standard involves certain key judgements 
relating to identification of distinct performance obligations, determination of transaction 
price of the identified performance obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used to 
measure revenue recognized at a point in time or over time. Additionally, revenue 
accounting standard contains disclosures which involves col lation of information in respect 
of disaggregated revenue and periods over which the remaining performance obligations 
will be satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

We' performed following substantive procedures over revenue recognition with specific 
focus on whether there is sing le performance obligation or multiple performance 
obligations in the contract and whether the performance obligation is being satisfied over 
the period of time or at a point in time: 

• Read, analyzed and identified the distinct performance obligations in these contracts. 

• Compared these performance obligations with that identified and recorded by the 
Company. . 

• Considered the terms of the contracts to verify the transaction price used to allocate to 
separate performance obligations. 

• Checked whether the performance obligation is being satisfied over the period of time or 
at a point in time. 

• Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenues disclosed. 

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The· Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's 
annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. 
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CONTINUATION SHEET... .. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our aud it of the Ind AS financial statements, ou r responsibili ty is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially incons istent with the fi nancial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our aud it or otherwise appears to be materia lly misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of thi s other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
noih ing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the lnd AS Financia l 
Statements 

The Company 's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financia l statements that give a true and fair view of the financia l position, financia l 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the COmpanies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15,as amended from time to time. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fra uds and other irregularities; se lection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeq uate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effective ly for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accouhting records, re levant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fa ir view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financia l statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Com pany ' s ability to continue as a go ing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to go ing concern and using the go ing concern basis of accounting unless 
management e ither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is a lso responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that inc ludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve l of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an aud it conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a materia l misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic dec isions of use rs taken on the basis of these 
financia l statements. 
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CONTINUATION SHEET... .. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the aud it. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia l statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 43(3)(i) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our op inion on 
whether the company has adequate internal tinancial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Concludc on the approprial<:ness of management 's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or condit ions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. lfwe conclude that a material uncertainiy exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's rep0l1 to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a go ing concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the lnd AS financia l statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to eva luate the effect of any 
identitied misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the aud it and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commlmicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these'matters in 
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determ i ne that a matter should not be 
communicated in our repolt because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonab ly be expected to outweigh the pub li c interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor' s Report)Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Gove rnment of India in terms of sub-sect ion ( ll )of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposes of our aud it. 

b. In our opin ion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
thc Company so far as it app~ars From our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (inc luding Other 
Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of 
Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
acco unt. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financia l statements comply with' the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Secti on 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

e. Being a gove rnment company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not 
app li cable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2015, 
issued by the Central Government of India. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contro ls over financial 
reporting orthe company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g. Being a government company, provision of secti on 197 of the Act are not 
applicable vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 20 15, issued by the 
Centra l Government of India. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rul e II orthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ru les, 20 14 as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: . 

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
materi a l impact on its financial position. 

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any 
provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

III. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
be li ef; no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
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CONTINUATION SHEET... .. 
in any other person or entity, including fore ign entity (" Inte rmedia ri es"), 
with the understand ing, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall , whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entiti es identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company ("U ltimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarant~e, securi ty 
or the like on beha lf ofthe Ultimate Bene fi c iaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material eithe r individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company fro m any person or entity, including 
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understand ing, whether recorded 
in writing or utherwise, that the Company shall , whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("U ltimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
ap propriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule II (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not dec lared or paid any final or interim div idend during 
the year and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting under c lause 
is not applicab le. 

vi. Based on our exam ination which includes test checks, the company has used 
an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has the 
feature of record ing audit trail (Ed it Log) and the same operates throughout 
the year for all the re levant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail being tempered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3( I) of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 20 14 is 
appl icable from Apri l 1,2023, reporting under Rule I I (g) of the companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 14 on preservation of audit trail as per the 
statutory req uirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial 
year ended March 3 I ,2024. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by 
Comptroller and Aud itor Genera l of India, we report that: 

S.No Directions Auditor's Replies 
1. Whether the company has system Company is using SAP system to 

in place to process all the process all the accounting 
accounting transactions through transactions. As per the 
IT system? If yes, the information and explanation 
implications of processing of provided to us, no accounting 
accounting transactions outside transactions have been processed 
IT system on the Integrity of the outside the IT System. 
accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be 
stated. 
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2. 

3. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 31.05.2024 

Whether there is any 
restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan? If yes, the financia l 
impact may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is 
a Government company, then this 
direction is also app licable for 
statutory auditor of lender 
company). 
Whether funds (grants/subsidy 
etc.) received/receivable for 
speci fic schemes from 
Central/State Government or its 
agencies were properly 
accounted for/utilized as per its 
term and conditions? List the 
cases of deviation 

UDIN: 24006 I 54BKFISQ4866 

CONTINUATION SHEET. .... 
No, Company is having no case 
of any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan. 

According to the 
information and explanation 
gi ven to us and as per our 
examination of records, no 
funds have been 
received/receivable for · any 
specific scheme from 
Central/State Government 
or its agencies during the 
financial year 2023-24. 

For Rajeudra K Goel & Co. 
Chartered Acc'ouutauts 

Firm Registration No: 00 1457N 

0061 4 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of Ireon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company does not have any 
intangible assets during the year. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the 
year. There is a regular program of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonablc having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. No material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verifications. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence reporting 
under clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(d) During the year, no assets have been revalued by the Company, hence reporting under clause 
~ (i) d of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence reporting 
under clause 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

11. (a) The Company has no inventories during the reporting year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 
(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time during 
the year, hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

111. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted any loan 
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships, and any other parties, during the year. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (a), 
(b), (c), (d), (e) and (t) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv. The Company has not granted loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and' security to 
which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached. Hence, 
reporting under Paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the 
publi~ and therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed 
there under, are not applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. The books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act, are broadly reviewed 
by us, and we are of the opinion that prima facie, such prescribed accounts have been made and 
maintained. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, 
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. There 
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, dutyofCustom, duty of 
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Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records 
ofthe Company, there is no amount payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, 
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 
2024 on account of any disputes. 

VIII. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961). 

ix. (a) According to thc information and explanations given to us and on the basis of uur 
exam ination of the records of the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year 
under audit. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. 

(c) The Company has utilized the money obtained by way oftenn loans during the year for)he purposes 
for which they were obtained. 

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting under clause 
3 (ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) The Company does not have investment in subs idiaries, associates or joint ventures during 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(I) The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and hence, reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

Xl. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company and no 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 ofthe Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date 
of this report). 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) (a), (b) and (c) of 
the Or~er is not applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
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accounting standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not require to have 
an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting 
under clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

XI'. In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

XV I. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank.oflndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by our audit and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that thi s 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We furtherstate that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
wi ll gei discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. The Company has not exceeded the limits prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 since its incorporation and hence, the Company is not required to transfer to a fund specified 
in schedule VI! to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of 
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the order is 
not applicable for the year. 

xxi. The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and therefore, 
company has not prepared consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xxi) of the order is not applicable. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 31.05.2024 
UDlN: 24006 I 54BKFlSQ4866 

For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 001457N 

\; R.K.~~ 
(Partner) 

Membership No: 00615 
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Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial 
Statements of Ireon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited for the year ended 31,1 March, 2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON AKLOLI­
SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 51 March 
2024. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on, "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for . ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
compleleness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financia l Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143( I 0) of the Companies Act, 20 13, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meani~g of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those pol icies 
and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial contro ls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2024, "based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro l stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 'Institute of 
Chartered Accountants ofIndia". 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 31.05.2024 
UDlN: 24006154BKFISQ4866 

For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 
Chartered Acconntants 

Firm Registration No: 00 1457N . 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Off.. : 43108262,41514296 
Mo.: 9810128151 

e-mai : rajendrakgoelco@gmail.com 
. web.: www.carkgoelco.com 

J-288, GROUND FLOOR, 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT SAKEr, NEW bELHI- 110017 
TO THE MEMBERS OF IReON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of IReON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD 
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the "company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
31 st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended 31 51 March 2024, and the notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the e~planations given 
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS finanCial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section, 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,20 15, as amended, 
("Tnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of 'the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 31 51 March 2024. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 . 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAl) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. ' 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current financial year. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

Revenue Recognition in terms of Ind AS 115 : "Revenue from Contracts with 
NHAI" 

Accounting Standard on Revenue which prescribes five steps revenue recognition model. 
The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after 
estimatin its ro ress towards com lete satisfaction of the erformance obli ation. The 

28



CONTINUATION SHEET. .... 

recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in 
work scope, claims (compensation, rebates etc.) and other payments to the extent 
performance obligation is satisfied. 

In the contracts where performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the 
output method is applied, which faithfully depict the Company's performa'nce towards 
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. As such the company recognizes 
revenue on the basis of stage of completion based on the proportion of contract cost 
incurred, relating to the total costs of the contract at completion. Thus, the recognition of 
revenue is based on estimates in relation to total estimated costs of each contract and cost 
incurred. 

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the' 
relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with 
their customers. 

The Further Explanation why we consider this as a Key Audit Matter is as follows: 

The application of the revenue accounting standard involves certain key judgement!? 
relating to identification of distinct performance obligations, determination of transaction 
price of the identified performance obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used to 
measure revenue recognized at a point in time or over time. Additionally, revenue 
accounting standard contains disclosures which involves collation of information in respect 
of disaggregated revenue and periods over which the remaining performance ,obligations 
will be satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date. , , 

We performed following substantive procedures over revenue recognition with specific 
focus on whether there is single performance obligation or multiple performance 
obligations in the contract and whether the performance obligation is being satisfied over 
the period of time or at a pOint in time: 

• Read, analyzed and identified the distinct performance obligations in these contracts .. 

• Compared ~hese performance obligations with that identified and recorded by the 
Company. 

• Considered the terms of the contracts to verify the transaction price used to"allocate to 
separate performance obligations. 

• Checked whether the performance obligation is being satisfied over the period of time or 
at a point in time. 

• Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenues disclosed . 

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company ' s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises th~ information included in the Company's 
annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. ' 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repOli that fact. We have 
nothing to repOli in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Iud AS Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended from time to time. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible ~or assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,. or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. . 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for tbe Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism tlu'oughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
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our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3 )(i) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify o~r opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Conwany to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) plamung the scope of our 
audit wOl~k and in evaluating the results of ollr work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the plamled scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them alI relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key auditmatters~ We describe these matters in 
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commUlucation. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requfrements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (lJ)of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. . 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of 
Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not 
applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2015, 
issued by the Central Government of India. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not 
applicable vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the 
Central Government ofIndia. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact on its financial position. 

ll. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any 
provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
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in any other persori or entity, including foreign entity ("Interrnediaries"), 
/ with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, <!Iirectly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any maImer 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasoriab1e and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 'has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any luaterial 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any final or interim dividend during 
the year and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting under clause 
is not applicable. 

vi. Based on our examination which includes test checks, the Company has used 
an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has the 
feature of recording audit trail (Edit Log) and the same operates, tlu"Oughout 
the year for aU the relevant transactions recorded in the software. FLUther, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail being tempered with. 

, 
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (AccOLU1ts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1,2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) ofthe ~ompanh~s 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention is ilot applicable for the financial 
year ended March 31,2024. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by 
Comptroller and Auditor General oflndia, we report that: 

S.No Directions , Auditor's Replies 
1. Whether the company has system Company is using SAP system to 

in place to process all the process all the accounting 
accounting transactions through transactions. As per the 
IT system? If yes, the information and explanation 
implications of processing of provided to us, no accounting 
accounting transactions outside transactions have been processed 
IT system on the Integrity of the outside the IT System. 
accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be 
stated. , 
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Place: New Delhi 
Date: 10.05.2024 

Whether there is any 
restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan? If yes, the financial 
impact may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is 
a Government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for 
statutory auditor of lender 
company). 
Whether funds (grants/subsidy 
etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes from 
Central/State Government or its 
agencies were properly 
accounted for/utilized as per its 
term and conditions? List the 
cases of deviation 

UDIN: 24006154BKFIS02506 
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No, Company is having no case 
of any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan. 

According to' the 
information and explanation 
given to us and as per our 
examination of records, no 
funds have been 
received/receivable for any 
specific scheme from 
Central/State Government 
or its agencies during the 
financial year 2023-24. 

For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 001457N 

ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited of even date) 

To the bestof our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company does not have any 
intangible assets during the year. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the 
year. There is a regular program of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size ofthe Company and nature of its business. No material discrepancies were 
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noticed on such verifications. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, henc,e reporting 
under clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(d) During the year, no assets have been revalued by the Company, hence reporting under clause 
3 (i) d of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence reporting 
under clause 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

ii. (a) The Company has no inventories during the reporting year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 
(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time during 
the year, hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted any loan 
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships, and any other parties, during the year. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (a), 
(b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

IV. The Company has not granted loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and security to 
which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached. Hence, 
reporting under Paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not appl icable to the Company. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the 
public and therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed 
there under, are not applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. The Company is not required to maintain cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act,20l3. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added TaX, 
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable with the appropriate ·authorities. There 
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, dutyofCustom, duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records 
of the Company, there is no amount payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, 
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31 , 
2024 on account of any disputes. 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961). 

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loan_~ ~r otlier borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year 
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under audit. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. 

(c) The Company has utilized the money obtained by way oftenn loans during the year for the purposes 
for which they were obtained. 

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting under clause 
3 (ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(f) The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and hence, reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial publ ic offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private pi'acement 
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

xi. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Comp!lny and no 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date 
of this report). 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) (a), (b) and (c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

XIII. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

XIV. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not require to have 
an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting 
under clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

xv. In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank ofIndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by our audit and in the 
immediateJy_ receding financial year. 

fi~~:~:d ~9~ 
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xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable. 

xix. On the basis ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. The Company has not exceeded the limits prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 since its incorporation and hence, the Company is not required to transfer to a fund specified 
in schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of 
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the order is 
not applicable for the year. 

xxi. The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and therefore, 
company has not prepared consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xxi) of the order is not applicable. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 10.05.2024 
UDIN: 24006154BKFIS02506 

Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial 
Statements ofIrcon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited for the year ended 3Ist March, 2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IReON AKLOLI­
SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 iri conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 sl March 
2024. 
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Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on, "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (lCAI)". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial co'ntrols over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants ofIndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over fmancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether que to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
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management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. T 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system overfinancial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating'effectively 
as at March 31, 2024, "based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants ofIndia". 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 10.05.2024 
UDIN: 24006154BKFIS02506 

For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad E.xpressway Limited 

CIN:-U45309DL2021 GOIJ91619 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 1024 

(.411 OI//{}/II/1\' ill 'llt/iall /(lIfJen lokhl' IIl1len Of/w/lI'ire Haled) 

Particul;Jrs: 

ASSf.TS 

Non-Cun-cnt Assets 

(a ) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Capital work-in progress 
(c) Investment Propeny 

(d) [ntangible assets 

(e) Intangible assets under development 
(f) Right-of-use assets 

(g) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Loans 

(iii) Other financial assets 
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(i) Other non-current assets 

Total .Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 

(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
(v) Loans 

(vi) Other Cllrrent financial assets 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(d) Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

Total equity 

Liahilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Lease liabilities 

(iii) Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and ,,)l11all enterprises 

- tOlal outstanding dues of creditors other thalllJrmicro enlelllrises 
and small cllte'lJrises 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Provisions 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities(Net) 

(d) Other non-current liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Lease liabilities 

(iii) Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of niicro enteIl'rises and small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro enterprises 
arld small enterprises 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other cli'rrem liabilities 

(c) Provisions , 

(d) Current Ta" Liabjliti.<;s (Net) · 

Total Current Liabilities ' ., 
;. ) 

TOTALEQl)IT'y AND LIAii'ILITII;:S 

Matenal accounting poliCies 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

As per OUf report of even date attached 
". For Rajcndra K 'Goel l& Co' . .. 

Place: New Delhi 

Dote: N~ IO,Ul24 

As at As at 
Note 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

2 0.21 0.34 

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

3 0.02 0.02 
4 - -

0.23 0.36 

- -
5 

- -
5.1 2,900.59 5,241.62 
5.2 3.103.06 4.13 

- -
- -

5.3 1:1.667.59 2.101.89 
6 180.78 0 .04 
7 7.273.33 5.425.08 

29,125.35 12,772.76 
29,125.58 12,773.12 

8 434.00 5.00 
9 5.874.52 5,175.33 

t--
6,308.52 5,180.33 

10 

10.1 15.570.00 3.070.00 

- -

-

- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

15,570.00 3,070.00 

II 

- -

- -
11.1 

1.15 4.52 

6,724.34 4,312.47 
11.2 56 .97 , 12.04 
12 46459 193.76 

- -
13 - -

7,247.05 . . 4,522.79 

29,125.58 , , . -12,773.12 

I to ~I 

For and on beh:~lf of tl.lc 8o:lrd of Directors 

Ircon Akloli-Shirsad .Expressway Limited 
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lI'con Aldoli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 

CIN :-U45309 DL2021 G0I39 1629 

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(./1/ , OIl/OW1/S ;11 { d ' R n 1011 upees L kl a' IS 1111 ex.\' vllerw;SIJ stalel I) 

Particulars 

Income 

Revenue Ii-om operations 

Other income 

Total Income (A) 

Expenses 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 

Other expenses 

Total expenses (B) 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (A-B) 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Tax adjustment of earlier years 

Deferred tax (net) 

Total tax expense 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) 

A) Items that will not be reclassified to prolit or loss 

Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

8) Items that will be reclassified to protit or loss 

Income tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to prolit or loss 

Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year (net of tax) 
Total Comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year 

Earnings (ler equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 

Basic 

Diluted 

Material accounting POitCICS 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ortlle linancial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Place: New Delhi 

Note 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

3 

25 

1 to 41 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

31,877.92 6,542.20 

523.12 42.43 

32,401.04 6,584.63 

30,903 .39 6,465.02 

49.07 23.43 

405.83 2.47 

0.13 0.07 

99.47 51.58 

31,457.89 6,542.57 

943.15 42.06 

237 .37 10.64 

(0.26) . 

- 0.03 

237.11 10.67 

706.04 31.39 

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -

706.04 31.39 

21.26 62.78 

21.26 62.78 

For and on behalf of the BOllrd of Directors 

Ircon Akloli-Shirsad ExpresswlIY Limited 

(Director) 

(DIN:-085170IJ) 
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I rcon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U45309DL2021 G01391629 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(All Cl11IOW1/S in/ni/ian Rupees Laklls uu/ess otherwise slaled) 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
Particulars 
Balance as at Olst April, 2022 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance as at Olst April 2023 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 

(b) Other Equity 

Amount 
5.00 

-
5.00 

429.00 

434.00 

Reserves & Surplus Other 

Particulars Retained Earnings Quasi Equity 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Balance as at 1st April 2022 
Profit for the year 
Other Comprehensive income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
Addition in Quasi Equity 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Balance as at Olst April 2023 
Total protit for the Year 
Payment for increase in authorised share capital 
Other comprehensive income for the period 

Total comprehensive income for the period 
Addition in Quasi Equity 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Material accounting policics 
The accompanying notes arc an Integral part or the financial st 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Rajendra K Goel & Co. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: ""'a 10, UllA-j 

(0.06) - -
31.39 - -

- - -
31.39 - -

- 5,144.00 -

31.33 5,144.00 -

31.33 5,144.00 -
706.04 - -

(16.84) - -

- - -
689.20 - -

- 10.00 -
720.53 5,154.00 -

I to 41 

For and on behalr or the Board or Directors 
[rcon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 

M"g~;k-
(Director) 

(DIN:-085170 13) 

Total 

(0.06) 
31.39 
31.33 
31.39 

5,144.00 
5,175.33 

5,175.33 
706.04 
(16.84) 

-
689.20 

10.00 
5,874.53 
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Ireon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U45309DLl021 G01391629 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in Indian Rup .. :cs Lakhs unkss othcm'isc stated) 

Particul:1rS 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation expense 
Interest Income 
Interest Expenses 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Movements in working capital: 
Increase/(decrcase) in other current liability 
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables and other current finilncialliabilities 
Increase/(decrcasc) in other non-current fin.mcialliabilities 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liability 
Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions 
InCrf!Olse/(decrease) in current provisions 
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 
Decrease/(increasc) in inventories 
Oecrease/(incrcase) in non current financial loans 
Decrease/(increase) in Trade Receivables and current financial asse ts 
Oecrcase/(increase) in other Non-current assets 
Decrease/(increase) in other current and non-current assets 
Increase/(decrease) in other current tax Assets/liabilities 

Cash generated from Operation 
Income Tax (paid)/refundcd 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operatino activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 
Interest Income 
Net cash flow from/(used in) investino activities 
Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from fresh issue of share capital 
Proceeds from non current borrowings 
Proceeds from Receipt of Quasi Equity 
Share issue expenses 
Interest paid 
Net cash flow from/(used in) in ~n:mcing activities 
Net increase/(dccrcasc) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the be Jilming of the ~ear 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes: 

For the year cnded For the yca.- ended 
31st March 2024 31 st Ma reh 2023 

943.15 42.06 

0.13 0.07 
(26.87) -
402.37 2.28 

1,318.78 44.41 

270.S4 193.76 
2.453.44 4,323.34 

-

-

( 11,224.69) (7,341.76) 
-

(1,84S.24) (5.420.70) 
0.29 

(10,348.36) (8,245.36) 
(9,029.58) (8,200.95) 

(4IS.15) (11.06) 
(A) (9,447.73) (8,212.01) 

(0.41) 
26.87 -

(8) 26.87 (0.41) 

429.00 
12,500.00 3,070.00 

10.00 5,144.00 
( 16.84) 

(40237) (1.34) 
(C) 12,519.79 8,212.66 

(A + 8 +C) 3,098.93 0.24 
4.13 3.S9 

3,103.06 4.13 

I. The Statement o f Cash flows has been prcpared under the Indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow' notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201S . 

2. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Components of Cash and Cash Equivalt.!nts includcd in the above Statement of Cash Flows: 

Pa rticulars 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 

- Cash on hand 

- With banks in current account 

- \Vith banks in escrow account 

- Deposits with uri Jinal maturity of less than 3 months 

Total cash ami cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 5.2) and Statement of Cash 
Flows 

-I. Reconcili:llioll of Liabilities arising from lin:mcing activities :IS on 31.03.202-1 and 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

Opening bal:lI1ces 

Cash nows: 

- Rcpaymcnls 

- Proceeds 

Closing b:tl:Hlces 

Particulars 

O"cning b:ll:lI1ccs 

C:lsh non'S: 

- Repaymenls 

- Proceeds 

Closing b:ll:lIIces 

As per our report of even date attached 

Asal Asat 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3, 103.06 4. I3 

3,103.06 4. 13 

Loan From BOB Interest on l.oan from 
808 

3,070.00 (2.02) 

(405.83) 

12,500.00 

15,570.00 (407.85) 

l.oan From BOB Interest on Loan from 
808 

(2.02) 

3.070.00 

3.070.00 (2.02) 

For :md 011 bch:llf of the Board of Directors 

(reon Akloll-Shirs:ld ExprCSS\\;lY LIIUlled ~. 

~~ 
Mugun!han Boju • "d:1 

(Director) 

Placc: New Delhi 

43



Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (the "Company") is domiciled and incorporated in India and is 
a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company 
domiciled in India. The Company (CIN U45309DL2021GOI391629) is incorporated under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. 

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of "Construction of Eight lane 
access controlled expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Aldoli Section- SPUR of Va do dar a 
Mumbai Expressway) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna 
(Phase- II - Package-XIV). In pursuant to the provisions of "Request for Proposal", the selected bidder 
'IRCON' has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Aldoli-Shirsad Expressway Limited as 
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on 23.12.2021. Accordingly, the Company has signed the 
Concession Agreement with NHAI on 27th Jan, 2022 for the project value amounting to Rs 1124 Crore. 
The Concession period is 15 years from Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Construction period is 548 
days from Appointed Date. The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Sal<:et, 
New Delhi- 110017. 

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial 
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as 
otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on 10.05.2024. 

2. Material accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

i. Statement of compliance 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following 
accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from 
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind 
AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statements. 

ii. Basis of measurement 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

iii. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for per 
share data, unless otherwise stated. 
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2.2. Summary of material accounting policies 

A summalY of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as 
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

2.2.1. Current and non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of 
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.2.2. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes: 

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates; 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the 
location and condition neceSSaIY for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed in the 
notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets. 

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 'f.5000/- are fully 
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to 
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses). 

2.2.3. Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent ofthe impairment loss (if any). 
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. 

2.2.4. Revenue Recognition 

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the 
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid 
Annuity Mode. 

i. Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement 

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance services 
under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obligation as 
contract is negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective and involves complex integration 
of construction and maintenance services. 

Revenue is recognised over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) which is 
consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship between the 
Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under input method, 
contract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting date. 
The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total 
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to 
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the 
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the extent 
of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance 
obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which the entity is able 
to reasonably measure its progress. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognised in the 
period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level. 

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the 
period the losses are identified. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is 
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated 
damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law etc. The Company recognizes revenue for 
variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue 
recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable 
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied 
performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the 
transaction price changes. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not 
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considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form 
of security for Company's remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with 
the industry practice. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only 
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable are 
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The 
Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore 
measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less loss allowance. 

Contract liabilities 
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS U5 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers) 

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("NHAI") for the construction 
services and Operation & Maintenance services. 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

ii. Other income 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount 
that will be received. 

2.2.5. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred 
except when it meets the criteria for capitalisation as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23. 

2.2.6. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax. 

i. Current income Tax 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed 
in accordance with relevant tax regulations. 

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretati<?n.a, ~establishes provisiqn~where appropriate. 
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Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

2.2.7. Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance 
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit 
and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ll. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company. 
The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund, post­
retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession. 

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to post 
employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on the basis 
of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services rendered in the 
Company. 

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed 
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability will 
be the responsibility of holding company. 

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long term 
employee benefits. 

2.2.8. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash ~- c-W.hich are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
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2.2.9. Contingent liabilities & contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect 
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

2.2.10. Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

Short Term leases 

The company has elected not to recognise ROD and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease 
term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.2.11. Financial instruments 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component, 
being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit 
and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the 
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as: 
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Financial assets at amortised cost 
After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial 
assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other 
financial asset. . 
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the 
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk 
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under 
IndAS 109. 

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financialliabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial 
liabilities. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part 
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

c) Derecognition of financial liabilities 
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2.2.12. Fair value measurement 

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. Such 
assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 

2.2.13. Earnings Per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period. 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

2.2.14. Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% of 
total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.2.15. Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, 
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 
in future periods. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and 
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to 
be different than those originally assessed. 

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable's balances and 
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be 
collectible. _" __ ~. 
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ii. Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against 
the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all available 
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations 
are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final 
outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies 
will have material effect on its financial position of probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, credit risk, existing market conditions as 
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

IV. Taxes 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and 
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between 
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate 
future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period 
in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required 
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and 
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

V. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant 
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but 
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and 
circumstances that may occur. 

vi. Revenue recognition 

The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.4, is central to how the company 
values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments and 
judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term 
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to 
underlying profitability and c sh:.flo~. 
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Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract: 
Determination of stage of completion 
Estimation of project completion date 
Provisions for foreseeable loses 
Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations. 

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates. 
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Current AutO - Financi.1 Assets 

5.1 . bl Current Financial Assets - Trode Rocelvi 

Particulan 

Secured. considered good 

es 

Unsecured. considered good 
Trade Receivables which have si~ilicant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts): 

Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have si~ilicant increase in credit Risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

TolIl 

Foot Note: 

As It Aut 
31st Mlrch, list Mlrch, 

2024 lOll 

2,900.59 5.241.62 

-
-

-

2,900.59 5,241.62 

Trade Rocievable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as II list March 2024 and 31st March 202l 

For the oeriod en ded II M h 2024 5t arc 

Particulan Vnbilled Not 
Due 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good -
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have si~ilicant 
increase in credit risk -
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have si~ilicant increase in 
credit risk 
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance 

Total 

For the year ended 31st March 2023 
Particulan Vnbilled Not 

Due 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have si~ilicant 
increase in credit risk 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have si~ilicant increase in 
credit risk 
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance 

Total 

Balances with banks: 
- On current accounts (i) 
- On escrow accounts (i) 
- Deposits with original maturity ofless than 3 months 

Total 

Note: 

Outstanding for the year ended Mlrch list, 2024 from the due 
date of payment 

Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 yean 2-3 yean More than l 
months I vear vears 
2.900.59 -

- - - -
-
-

- -
- -

2,900.59 

- - -

2,900.59 -

Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2023 from Ibe due 
date of payment 

Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 yean 2-3 yean 
months 1 year 
5,241.62 

- -
-

-
-

5,241.62 

5,2~1.62 

More tbu 3 
yean 

-
-

'\ 5 aI I 

3\StM~Y(J., 
20 ).'1 

3,103.06 

3.103.06 

Total 

2,900.59 

-
2,900.59 

2,900.59 

Total 

5.241.62 

-

5.141.62 

S.H1.62 

4.13 

4.13 

(i) Rs. 3103.06 lakhs held in escrow account (31st March 2023: Rs. ~.Illakhs held in Escrow accounl) which are earmarked fund as per concession agreement 

entered with NHAI. 
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U45309DU021 G0I391629 
Notes form ing part of the financial Statements 
(All a"'Ollnl~' it! I"dian RU0-'t.' ;" urkhl' lIl1/cl'Y CJlh,'nl'il'c }'(al(.'ti) 

5.3 Current -\ ssets Other Financhl \ssets , -

Pnrticulnrs 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Contract Assets: 
Unbilled revenue under SCA 
Money Withheld by Client 
Interest Accrued on Deposit's with Bank 

Total 

6 Current Assets - Current Ta x Assets (Net) 

(Jarticulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 

Total 
Note: 
Refer Note 13 for Current tax liabilit ies (Net) of FY 2023-24 

Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

(Considered good unless otherwise stated) 
Advances Other than Capital Advances 
Advances to Related Parties - Ireo" International Limited (flolding Company) 

- Advances to Contractor, Suppliers and Others 
Other Advances: 
Advance Recoverable from : 
- Goods and Services Tax 
- Building cess receivable 

Others 
Prepaid Expenses 
Interest accrued on advance to Related Parties 

Total .. -

As at As :It 
31st March, 31 st March, 

2024 2023 

15,667.59 2. 101.89 

-

15,667.59 2,101.89 

As at As at 
31st Morch, 31 st March, 

2024 2023 

180.78 0.04 

180.78 
---:-:-

-~ 

As at AS:H 

31st March, 31st M:lrch, 
2024 2023 

4.074.33 5.000.00 

2,652.06 363.09 
130.04 

18.21 23.80 
398.69 38.19 

7,273.33 - 4'- 0'8 
' " -~:..=..::... 
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Ireon AkloJ' . 
CIN:,U4SlO9,·ShlrUd Expressw.y Limited 
N DL2021COIJ9t6l9 

otes form' 
• .JI'llItlOtt , Jill pan of the F •• ntial Statement, 

"J "bJcIIc.r RII ~.I LoIrh,llmll'.fJ O'~"".'r sl/l/l'.11 

!;,g,u!!.rSh .... C.D~.I 
Particullrs 

Authorised Sblr~ Capital 

Authorised Shn Capital 
1.75.00,000 equity shaes of RS.10/· each 
(1,75,00,000 equity shaes of Rs.10/· each as at 31st Math 2(24) 

Issued. SUbKrDtd lad (uly paid·up sblres 
43.40.000 equity sIwes of Rs. IQI· each 
(50.000equi~' sh .... ofRs. IQI· each IS" 31 51 Man:h 2023) 

Tol.1 issu ..... ubscri><d .nd fuly p.OI·up sh .... <lp~.1 

:.) Dellis of Promoter', shlrehold .. , 

"'" '" ., 
Jist M.rth.lOl4 Jist M.rth.lOll 

1.750.00 5.00 

434.00 5.00 

434.00 S.OO 

Plrticulln Shirts beld b Promoter lilt Jist Mlrch,lOU -,4 chlalt duml 

Promoter Nlllle No. 0'11111'0 e;. 0' tol.1 sa..rn 
Iht~lr 

"'" 31st MIn:h. 2024 freon International 43.40.000 100'1. 
limited 

Outstl.dill2 I. the end of the yur 0.40.000 IfM,.;. 

Plrticulln Shirts beld by Pro_oler U It lbe M.rt~, 20ll ·.4c".CC' durial 

"'" 31st MIn:h. 2023 

Outstaadiu~ at tbe ead orthe ~riod 

(b) RecoDe_rioa of the sIIIares outsUndm, It the bt2inaine lad It the ead of the yur 

"rticu"n 

At tbe bqiaaiDl ortbe yelr I (~riod) 
Issued during the year I (period) 

Outstlndin: at the end or tile vear I (oeriod) 

(c) Termsl ricbts attached to equity shares 
(ijVorine 

Promoter Name No. of Jltares 

freon InlCmabonaJ SO.OOO 
limited 

50.000 

"'.t Jist M.reb. 202-1 

No. of Shires Amouot ill Laldas 

50.000 5.00 
42.90.000 429.00 

43.40.000 434.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
(i) LiquOiarinn 

die year 
e;. of lot,l sill,," 

100';' 

tOOO'" 

"'.t JI .. M.re~ 202J 

No. orSll.res A.o..till..akJts 

SO.OOO 500 

50.000 S.OO 

In Ibe event of liquidation of Ibe Company. the holders of equ ity shares will be enbtlcd to receive remaining assets of the Company. after disuibution of aU pn:feraJbaI amounts. 1bc 
distribution will be in proportion [0 the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
(iiJDMdud 
The drvidcnd proposed b~' the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual Genera.! ~1ccl1ng. 

fdl Detl. of sblt'fbolden holdine: more thl. S·/. sh.res III the C OI~J~.~l': 
P.rtieulan 

Equity SII ..... or Ib. 10 •• cb ruly p.OI 
Ireon International limited and its nominees 

'anieulln 

Equity Sb ..... or R •. 10 •• ch ruly p.OI 
(rcon International limited and its nominccs 

(c) For me period of prcc:ceding five years as on me Balance sheet date. 
(il Shares bought back: Nil 
(ill Sharcs allotted 35 ful l ~ paid up b~ 11.l~ of bonus sh.lrcs NIl 

(iii) Shares issued for eonsiderarion omer than cash. Nil 

(f) !-bldmg Compiln~ "Mo's Ireon Intemauonal LlmltedH IS public Sl.:cto r conslrucllon compan~ . holdLDl! Il.IU"' 'O EqUl~ Share o flh~ comp:lJ1~ 

Orher Equ~ \' 

I Tolli 

Alit Jlsa Man:!a.ZOZ.-

No.or~.1"H % ..... , .... 
clus 

43.-10.000 100% 

AI.t Jill Mlft~ 2t2J 
No . • rSllares %~oIdiI, .... 

clus 

50.000 11lO"'. 

h I I \ ' II 

I Jbl \l:Ireh . !U! ~ Jbl \I :l reh. 202J ( 

5.874.SZ I 5.I7S.JJ I 
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freon Akloli-Shirsad Exprcssw:IY Limited 
CIN:-U45J09DLZOZ I GOIJ916Z9 
Notcs fomling p.u ·t of the Fin:lnci'll St •• lemen's 
(..III (lIIIO/mU;II IlIdiull 1l1I1"· ... f ["J.:Ju /ml .. u ollll:"fiSI: Jtlth·lii 

i) Movement as Ilcr below: 
Retained E.'minfJs 

r;l.-ticulars 

Opening D"I'lIIee 
Transfer fro m su rplus in statement of profit and loss 
Payment for increase in authorised share capital 

Qu;ui Equity 

Par.ielll:trs 

Ollcning D •• lance 
Receipt of Quasi Equity 

Closin2 D:,I;mec 

As"t 
31st i\'I,u-eh. 2024 

31.33 
)U6.04 
(16.84) 

720.52 

As a. 
31st /\I'lreh. 2023 

(U.OG) 

31 .39 

JI.J3 

As at As at 
31st M:lreh. 202-1 31st l\I:treh. 2023 

5,1-'4.00 
10.00 5. IHOU 

5.15-1.00 5.14-1.00 
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Ireo" Akloli·Shirsatl Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U45J090L202IGOIJ91629 
Notes ronning I,:,rt or the Financial Statements 
rAil utllOlmU in IlIIliall /lllt)"",f l.llld/.f ftI/ft,u ol/,,'n. if(' ,fluh'dJ 

ii) Nature :'nd Purpose: 
Retained E'lmings 
Retained Earnings represents thl! undi stributed profits of the Compan~', 

Qu:tsi Equity 
Quasi Equity reprt!scnts equity contribution from the Holding Company in form of Interes t frcl! loan, TI1C Company does not have any repayment obligation and arc defined as "Equity" in Ihe 
concession agreement with NHAI. Accordingly. these are considered to be in the nature of equity instruments, 

10 Non-Current Liabilities· Fill:Ulci,,1 Liabilities 
10.1 Borrowings 

Asal Asat 
P<lrtieulllrs 

Jist !\I.,rch, 202-1 Jist !\I:u-ch. 2023 

Loan From D:mk.s: 
Secured: 
Loan From Bank of Baroda 15.570,00 J.U7n,t1U 

Total 15.570.00 3,070.00 

Note: 
The Company has entercd into a term loan agreement during the financia l year 2022·23 with Bank of Baroda to finance the project for an amount or Rs, 68,637,00 Lakhs, During the 
financial year 2023-2-t. disbursement of Rs, 12500,00 Lakhs (31 st March 20}3 : 3070 Lakhs) has been recei\ 'ed Thl! terms and conditions and detail of security arc as under: 

I) Del:lils of Terms "lid Conditions: 
(i) Inll.!rcst r<lte to be charged on loan shall be O\'emight MCLR without Strategic Premium +O,O~% with monthly rest. Prt!sently. applicabll! interest rate is 8,1-t% p,a. 

(ii) MOrJtorium or 6 months from the dale of PCOD/COD, 
(iii) Term Loan shall be reparable in 26 structured semi-annual instalments commencing aner 6 months end (moratorium) in which COOl peOD is achieved, 
(i") Inten."St shall be paid as and when debited, MCLRfSprcad shall bl! subject to reset as and \\hen it changt!s , 
(\,) Corporate Guarantee of the Promoter i,e.frcon Intt!mational Limited (AAA Rated) shall be a\'ailable till the receipt of 1st annuity from NHAI or COD + 180 days, whiche\'er is later. 

2) Details of Security: 
The facility together with all inlercsl. fees. commission and other monies what soevcr stipul<lted and due to the lender shall bt! secured , to th e extent permitted under the Concession 
Agreement by: 

(a) A first mongage and charge on all the Borrower's immo\'ilbll! properties (if any), both present and future. sa\'e and e,xcept Project Assets; 
(b) A first charge on all the Borrower's tangible mo\'able asselS. including mm'able plant and machinery. machinery spares. tools an~ accesso ries. furniture. fixtures. \'ehiclt!s and al! other 
mo\'able asSt!lS, both present and future. save and except the Project Assels: 

(c) A first charge o\'er all accounts of the Borrower including the Escrow Account and Sub·"ccounts (o r any account in subsitution thereof) that may be opened in accordance with the 
Concession Agreement, Facility Agreement, Escrow Agrcl!ment and the Supplementary Escrow Agrel!ml!nt or any of the other Project Documents and all funds from time to time deposited 
therein. the Recei\'ables and or other securities, provided thai the sanle bl!ing appiil!d to Ihe extent of watcrfa ll of priori ty of payments as specified in thl! Concl.."Ssion Agr~cment and the 
Escrol\' Agr~emenl and not beyond Ihat: and all the charge o\'er the Recei\'ables shall be enforceable by the Senior Lenders forthe purposl! of ensuring that the Receivables are crt!diled 10 

the Escrow Account for the purpose of being applied to the extcnt of water rail orpriority orpaYnlents as specifil!d in the Concession Agreement and the Escrow Agreement and not beyond 
that. 

(d) A first charge over all intangible asSl!lS of the Borrowcr including but not limih:d to goodwill . rights. undena(.;ings. and uncalled capilal prl.."Sl!nl and ruture excluding the Project Assets 
(Provided that all the ,1fllount recei\'ed on account of any of these shall be deposited in the Escrol" Account and the charges on thl! same shall be subject to the extent permissible as per 
priority specified in the Concession Agreement and the Escro\\' Agreemenl), further. a charge on the uncalled capital. as set in abo\'e. shall be subject howe\'er to the pro\'isions of 
Concession Agreement: 

(e) A !irst charge or assignmen t by way ofSecurily in, 
- allthl! right. litle. interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoe\'er orthe Borrower in. to and under the Project Documents: 
- the right. tille, interests, benefits. claims and demands whatsocn:r or the Borrower in. to and under alllhc Approvals: 
- ailihe righ t, title. interests. benefit s, claims and demands wh:'llSoc\'er of the Borrol'w in. to and under any letter oCcredit. guarantees including contractor guarantees and iiquidmed 

damages and performancl! bond pro\'ided by any pan)' to the Project Documents: and 

- all the right, htlt:. interests, benefits. claims and demands whatsoe\'er or the Borro\\ er in. to and under all thl! Insurance Contmcts; 
(h) DSRA: DSRA for to J month's interest and one principal instnlment. 
The entire Security (including execution or Escrow and Subsitution agreement) shall be creatl!d upfront prior to the disbursement and perfected prior to disbursement. 
J) There has been no default in rl!paymcnt of any or the loans or interest thereon as at Ihe end or Ihe year, 
-t) The CCIIIlpany has used the borrowings from banks for the purposes for which the)' werl! taken , 

II Current Li:lbililies - Financi;ll Li:lbilities 
Il.l Current Uabilities - Tr:tde P"y"bles 

P:lrHculars 

(A) Micro. Small & Medium Enterprises 
(B) Other than Micro, Sm:J11 & Medium Enterprises 

(i) Contractor. Supp liers and Consultants 
(ii) ReiJto..!d Parties 

Foot Notes: 

Asat Asat 
Jist March. 2024 Jist !\I:lrdl, 2023 

1.15 4.52 

2.43 
6,721.~1 4,312A7 

6,725.49 ~,J16.99 

a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 1 Micro. Small and MediUm Ent~Cf>rises De\'dopment AC1.2t106 (MSMED) are pro\'idcd in Note 35. 
b) Terms and Condilions and o ther balances \\'ith related parties are disclosed in Notl! 2-1 , 
c) Trade payablcs Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 31 Sl March 202.t and 3 1 st March 2023, 
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(reon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U45309DLl021 GOIJ91629 
Notes fannin g 1': .... 1 of Ihe Financi:tI SlaCemenu 
iA/J IlIIfUlml.t ill /I/dilm IlIl/Jt'/:s 1.l.,1dlJ fm/;: .u (f/"~nds(' siu/t'dl 

Pflrticulars 

Totnl outstanding dUl!s of micro enterprises and smallenterprisl!s 

Total outstanding dues of credilors olher than micro enh!rprises 
and small cntl!rprises 
Disputed ducs of micro enterprises iV1d small enterprises 
Dispuled ducs or creditors other than micro enterprises and 
smallentcrl'rises 

P<lrticullirs 

Total outslandin!l dues of micro enterprises and small enterprisl!s 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and smallenlerprises 
Disputed dues of creditors othl!r Ih<ll1 micro <!nh:rprises and 
small enterprises 

11.2 Current Liabilit ies - Other Finauciltl Liabilities 

Particulars 

Unsecured 
Payable to Holding Company 
Amount Payable 10 Client 
PaYJble to Auditors 
Interest accrued on s<!cured borrowings 
Other Payable 
Other payable (including staff payable) 

Tol:lI 

12 Olher Current Liabilities 

OulSlanding for Ihe year elided M:,rch J 151,202" frOIll the due d.,tc of 

Unbillcd Not Due f-:--.--:-T--.--:----.lf"'.'=ylm"'c''O'''':-----,-:-:--.----c:---I 
Less than 1 1-2 ye:tr 2-3 year !\lore Ihan J years 

year 

1.15 

6.72-&.3-& 

6.725.49 

Outsl:utding for the ye:lr ended l\1;,rcl,Jlsl. 2023 from Ihe due dale of 

Unbilled Nol Due I-:_-.-_:-T_-.--:-__ -'Pr".:.y_m_cn-::-'-:-__ --,-:-:---c-.----c:-_-I 
Less Ihan I 1-2 yCOlr 2-J year More than 3 years 

ye.,r 

0.70 3.71 U. II 

·UI2.47 

0.70 3.71 "JI2.58 

Total 

1. I=", 

6.724.34 

6.725--'9 

" .52 

4.312.47 

4.316.99 

Asat As"t 
llsl March. 2024 llslMarch.202l 

33. 17 

20.30 

56.97 

Asnl Asat 

3. I U 
g.27 

U.67 

12.04 

PI, rliCIII:lrs ______________________________ _______ . ________________________________________________ ~3~1~"~~~I~:lr~c~h.~2~0~24~~3~I~st~~~I~:lr~c~h.~2~0~23~ 

Statutory Dues 

Tota l 

13 Current liabilities - Currenllax liabilities (nct) 

Particulars 

Provision ror ta:..; (Net of Advance Tax) 

Tot:1I 
Note: 
Refer Notc 6 for Current tax assets (ncl) of F\' 202J-2 .. , 

14 Revenue from operations 

Particul:trs 

Rc\'cnue from operation 
ContrilC! re\ 'enue 

Total 

15 Other Income 

Particul:u's 

Interest Income from 
- Adrance to Holding Company i.e. (rcon International Limited 
- Fised Deposit 
- Income lax refund 

Tot .. 1 

46-&.59 11)3.76 

464.59 193.76 

Asat As a. 
31st !\I"rch, 2024 31S( M:l rch. 202) 

For Ihe year ended f or the year cnded 
Jist l\'l:trch 2024 list M:lrch 2023 

31.877.1)2 6,5·n.2U 

31,877.92 6.542.20 

For Ihc year endcd for Ihe yea,' ended 
Jist l\1:trch 2024 31st l\1:\rch 2023 

-&92.24 
26.87 
4.UI 

523.12 

·HA3 

-12.-&3 
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Ireon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-U~5]09DL2021 GOll91629 
Noles ronning pal'l or lhe Fin:ulcial St;ltelllenlS 
(,-III (fIllOIlIllS ill /lk/im, RlIt't','s l.llkl'J 1I"f.-.U utl,,''''''iu stlll<'d l 

16 Project Expenses 

Particul:1 t"S 

Work expenses 

Ind~p~ndenl Engint.~r Inspection Charges 

Tot:1I 

17 Employee benelits expenses 

P:lI"ticulars 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 

Contribution to Pro\'ident and Olher Funds 
Retirement Benefils 
StaffWclrare 

Tot:,1 

For lhe year ended For the year ended 
3Isll\1:lfCh 202~ 31st l\1:trch 2023 

lO.787.JK 
11 6.01 

30.903.39 

6,-H 6.'JJ 
.tH.I)') 

6.465.02 

Fo r the )'e;:lr ended For the ye:lr ended 
list March 202~ 31st March 2023 

36. 19 18.5') 
2.59 1.4-1 

IO.21J 3.",0 

~9.07 B.U 
Note: Disclosures ;IS per Ind AS 19 - ' Emilloyee Benefits' in respect or provision made tow"rds "anous employee benefits arc provided in Note 22. 

18 Finance costs 

IJ:trticulars 

Interest cost all fin:mci;,lli :lbiIHies lIIe.uured ;1( :!lnortixed cost 
- Interest Expense on Term Loan 
Interest on Income Tax and olher statutory dul!S 
Olher borrowing costs 
- B3l1J,; Guaranle\! & Other Charges 

19 Deprcci;ltion, amonis:ltion and illlp:'lirrnent 

Particul:\rs 

rocprcci;].tion on Property. Plant and Equipment 

~. 

20 Other Expenses 

POIrticulars 

Paynlenl to the Auditors (Rer~r No te (i) bdow) 

Legal & ProCessional charges 
Pre-incorporation e:-;pens..: 
Printing & Stationery exp..:ns,",-s 
Rent 
Bank Charges 
Tran::lling Expenses 
Insuranct: 
Repairs and Mainlt:nance olJic..: 

Rate & Ta."es 
Business Promotion 
Misc Expenses (Rerer Not..: (ii) below) 

Total 

(i) P:tY_l1lent to the Auditors 
Particul:1rs 

Payment to the auditor's ror 
Asmlditor: 
- Statutory Audit Fl!e 
- To..." Audit Fee 
- Limited RC\'iew fee 
In olher C:lIl:lcHy: 
- Olher Services 
- Reimbursement or expensl!S 

Total 

(ii) Includes penahy ror bte riling o(pro(css llmall:lXr<!tumsNil(FY2U22-1.3 : Rs. 0. lllaJ.;hs) 

For the ye;lr ended for the ye:lr ended 
31st 1\'I:Irch 202~ Jist l\1:Irch 2023 

-I05.H3 

~05.83 

Z.()2 

0 .26 

0.1':> 

2.47 

For the ye:tr ended For the ye:.;;'~ 
J lst March !02~ 31st March 2023 

!I .ll ll,l17 

0. 13 0.07 

For the year ended For the ye;tr ended 
JlslM;trch 202" Jist I\brch 2023 

l.1 5 OAM 

15.34 16JI(i 

0. 12 OAt) 

3.31 ] .01 

2. 10 2.79 
0.20 0.6-1 

77.0; 26.59 
U.02 0.05 

0.02 
0.05 

0.13 0.65 

99.H 51.58 

For the ye:lr endcd For Ihc ye:u ended 
JlslMllrch lOH Jist Mllrch 2023 

0.65 
tUn 
0 .10 

Ll5 

(US 
O.ox 
0. 15 

OA8 
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Ireon Akloli-Shirsad EXI>rcssway Limited 
CIN :-U~5309D L2021 G01391629 

Notes forming part of the Financial SI:ltCf11Cnts 

(All amounts in IndiJu RUP\"C5 Lakhs unkss otlll.:misc stat .. ",,·d"-) ___________ _ 

21 Disclosure as per Ind AS I 'Presentation or financial Statements' 

a) Changes ill :tccounting policics :1nu tlisclosurcs 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian f-\ccolillting Standards) Amendment Ruies,2023 dated March 31. 2023 
to amend the following [nd AS which afC effective for annual pl.!riods beginning on or "ncr April I. 2023.The Company applied for the first-time these 

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates · Amendments to Ind AS 8 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and the the correction of errors. 

It has also beeil cla rified how entili~s use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accoun ting estimates, 

Tile amendments had no impact on the Company's financial statements, 

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies· Amendments to Ind AS j 

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting polic,y disclosures Ihat arE" more useful by r€ placing the requirement for entities to disclose 

Significant accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their 'material' accounting policie~ and adding guidance on how entities apply the 

concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures , 

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation 

of any items n the Company's financial statements. 

(iii) Defe-rred "'!"ax related to Assets and Liabilities ariSing from a Single Trans-artion . Amendments te lnd AS 12 

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition excep!ion under Ind AS 12, so that it n3 longer applies to transactions that give rise 

to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases , 

As a result of tilese amelldments, the Company has to recognil..e a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax 

liab ility 'in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify fo( offset as per the requirements of parCtgraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no 

imp~r.t in the balznce s.heet. 

b) Recl.lssilic:ltio l1 anu comp~ rative figures 

RecJas'iifica:ions/Regrouping have been made wherever n~cessary to dle comparai.ivc period's financial statement: 

- to enhance tlte comparibil ity with the current year's financial statements 

- to ensure compliance with the Guidance note on Division II - Illd AS Scheoule III to the Companies Act 

Therefore. ceilaiu prior periods amount have been reclassific.d/n.:groupcd ror consistency with the current period prescn!atiotts . These Icclilssifical10m !a live nf' 
effect On the n~ portco rcs!'lits of opcrations , A!so previous year fi gures ilrc shown under brack.~t 0 [0 difTercnti ;.tc from current yr:ar figure:: 

1.1 L+isclostire as per Ind AS 19 Oft Employee benefits 
Pte cr..pk,yc~s If. [rcon <\kloli ·Shirsad Expressway Limitcu (tn' pos ted on nOlllinationl scconrlment basis from [rcoll [ntemational Limi~f!d (HoldillJ Compar.{ , 

In (cOIns o!: ao::-,;ountinb pollcy of the COlnpany (Notc No. l2 ,7) and .tn'angemcnt with lhc Holding i...:ompany, the provision ror Relircltltut 3cndi.ts !'illch as 
pr~\Jidcp.'t fi no. r~J)sion. gratuity , p'Jst I"ctirclT.ent medicai IJe!leflts. Leaves :lIld other tenDinal benefi ts of nominaied emplovccs is being made by Holding r.cmp<tIlY 

"ih 'tcnn!'i 01 :111 AS-19, The :unount paid 'or ra)'able to\\/Cirds 'provident fund. pension, gratuity, po~t re tirciuenC medica! benefits, Leaves and t:!her tenninal t.cllcfi ::~ 

:0 the h,)lciu!:; ,:ompany art: inc iudcG iT, "Employee Benefit l:-"xpenscs" (Note 17). 

Provident f;'-Ind (ontriulltion nfthe employeo;~ on nOl1lination/sC'tondl1lC'nl have becn regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.F T n!!'! 

23 Oisclosure .H. pc ':" [nd AS 2t :Th..: Effecfs ufChangcs in Foreign Exchange Rates' 

The am()uot of exchange differcnc{~s (nd) credi ted/debi ted to Ihe sta tenw,nt of profit and 10s'\ i:, Nil (31 March 2023: Nii), 

24 Related r:l rty Disclosures 

Disclosure as per Inri AS 24 'Relatcd Party Disclosures' ale as undt!t: 

0) Lic.t of Rel:lted P:lrties 
(i) lIoldlllg company 

lrcon rntcrnatiollal Limited 

(ii) Key Management "ersonnel (KMP) 
Part Time 3Qd ~on Executive Directors 

Name 
Shri Parag' Vcnna 

.. Shri Yogesh KUliiadvlisra 

·Shri B.Mugunthan . 

Shri Masood Ahmad 

Shri Devendra K.limar Sham13 

___ Designation 

Pan Time and Non Executive Director 

Pan Time ami Non Executive Director 

Part Time and Non Executive Director 

Pan Time and Non Executive Director 

Pan Time and Non Executive Dil ector 

(VI.C.f. 231 121202 1) -----~ 
(\V.d . 01/0212024) I 
(w.e.f. 231!2/2021) ~ 
(\V.e.f. 2)1(2/2021) 

(\V.c.f. 10/10/2022 to) 110112024) _ 

Remllneration to· Key Mnnagement ,PersoimeJ: Company had Part-lime ,lIld Non Executive Dircctors during the linancia l year 2023-24 and 2022-23, 
riominated on the Board by the Holdin'g Company. do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to Part- time and Non Executive 

Directors . 

. . h) Tntnsactions with other related parties are as follows· 

, Nature of tr:lnsacti.on N:lIl1e of related Nature of For the year ended For the year ended 
party relationship 31st March 2024 Jist March 2023 

I) Work expenses 30,787.38 6,416.93 

2) Reimbursement expenses of PF, Pension, GIS, BG Charges elc 42.75 9.70 

3) Rent Expense (inclusive ofOST) 3.31 3 .01 
4) Mobi lisa tion Advance [rcon Intentation .. 1 

Holding Company 
.. 5.000.00 

5) Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital Limited 429.00 -
6) Receipt of Quasi Equity (Interest free loan) 10.00 

5.
1443 7) Interest Income on Mobilisatio'n Advance 492.14 42 .43 

8) Reimbursement for increase in Authorised Share Capital -- 16.84 

c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are :IS follows' 
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Ireon Aldoli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CIN:-1I45J090L202ICOIJ91629 

Notes forming part of the Finantial Statements 
(All a lllQllIHS ill Indi;;m Rupees Lakhs un.less othcm isc staled) 

Nature of tr:ms:Jction 

I) ivlobilisation Advance 
2) Interest Accrued on Mobillisation Advance 
3) Balance Payable as all reporting date 

4) Equity Share Capital (Including Quasi equity) 

d) Terms :lnd conditions of transactions with related p:lrtics 

Name of related N'lturc of 
party relationship 

Iecon Intemational 
Holding Company 

Limited 

(i) Transactions with related parlies arc made on tcnns equivalent to those that prevail in ann's length transactions . 

AS:lt As at 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

4,074.33 5,000.00 
398.69 38.19 

6.755.08 4,315.57 
5,588.00 5,149.00 

(ii) Outst<lnding balances of related par1:ies at the reporting dale arc unsecured and settlement occurs through banking tl<lIlSactiolls .. These balancl!s are interest free 
except Mobilisation Advance on which interest is chargeable at an interest rate equal to the average of one year MCLR of top 5 Scheduled Commercial banks 
plus 1.25%. 
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lrcon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited 
CI N :-U45J090 L2021 G0f391629 

Notes forming part of the Financial Stntcments 
~mollnls in Indi:ln Rupclo'S Lakhs unless otherwise slaled) 

25 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS is calculated by-dividing the · profit for the period attributable to equity holders by the \\'eight~d avaagc Humber of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the ·period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluti vc potential 
eqllity shnres into equity shares. 

0) Basic and dilu.ted earnings 

Particulars 

per s lare r R \ on s., 

holders (Rs. in lakhs) 

f equity shares outstanding during the period 

Profit attributable 10 Equity 

No.or equity shares 

Wei~hted average number 0 

Eamings per share (Basic) 

Eamings per 'ihare (Di!uted) 

Face value er share 

_(ii) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numera tor) (Rs in hkhs) 

Particulars 

Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

~~utable 10 Egui~ holders of the cOIllEan}:: used for computing EPS 

Note 

(ii) 

(iii) 

-. 

For the year ended For the year endell 
Jist March 2024 Jist March 2023 

706.04 31.39 
43.40.000 50.000 

33.20,246 50.000 

21.26 62.78 

21.26 62.78 

10.00 10.00 

For the year ended For the year ended 
JIst j\'Jarch 2024 Jist iI'[a rch 2023 

706.04 31.39 
706.04 -~ 

Fii) \V.cighted ~~~~m.ber of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.) 

Particulars 
---------,~~----~~~----~~ 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Opening balance of isslied equity shares 

Equity shares issued during the period 

______________ -+_::.J:..:ls:.:·t.::iI'c:[a:::rc:c.::h~2::0:.::2.,:.4:+-J-ls-t-iI'-[:~r_c_h_2_0_2_J 
50.000 50,000.00 

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 

Uilutioll Effect: 

Add : Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the period 

42,90.000 

33,20,246 50,000 

Weighted av.uagc number o(eguity shares fQr CO!TIEuting Diluted EPS ____ . ________ -'- _"'33"'.2:.;:0::;:.;:..:4.::..6,L1 ______ 20,OQQj 
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Irctln Aklnli-Shin.ul [~pn.·u"OIy Linlilcd 
C I.\':·UHJO'.lULl02IGOI39 1629 

.\'nl r-< rUt'min: rar( urlht"' Fill~ ll d:ol S I ~ Ifmt"'nI ~ 

(,\I1." ..... n1> in [nJi."I(u,.."" r .• \J"u"k, .. ,~h..~"""'..t.I,.,JI 

21i lnl r:oir111fnl or.\..-o.~d' 

During Ih.: ~.:~r. C:n l11!~1I1 Y h:J' ,· :ll1"i~-.J W I ~ ~-.:"nh .. ' II un imi"'Jirl11': 1I1 u .. illdi \ ' iJu ~ 1 ~,-.cl ' by .... nrL.:iu.:; OUI lh.: f\:co\l: I~bl..: ~ nrlJl ll l I bJ.-cJ UII lu\\Cr or Ih.: Il<:l r,·a li r..:..b lc ";>1ue urrJ '::.Ul1il\~ 

~11~t ill l~rl11 ~ of 111.\ AS JD. ·· ll11 p:.rirl1l~rn 01" I\~""'l~ " llolific.l 1I11J.:r -;o.:c li OlI 13.\ 01" lit,' ':("UI~1I11e~ J\~I. 2U U rc;!d w ilh Rule 3 or Ihe COllll';Jl\ic~ (Ind ia l1 i\~.::oo nlin g SI!lJI .. I.:I[J~) Rulc ~. 

::U U Ullo\ C:oml"1J1ic~ (hilI lUll ~c"ouilling 'l,ll ldu ,,\ ~j Am~lr..tluenl Rul~~ 2U16 . TIleN :Lre I ~I i l lo l i~,1hlr ~ \\hid, lcuJ III ;.I llY i nll ~1i rm~nl 0 1" .1~s.:I~ uflhe COl1lp.:u lY. A.::cordil1~ly. il1\l>.linllL'1!I 
lo, ~ o(.\'U l.\ I ~bn:k ~I) ~ .\ : N,l) hJ~ I...-L'11 prO\'i,kJ for. 

21 Conlinl!t"'111 ti~hililil·~. c",,/iI11!t"'O I :o,".('r ~ :oml.:url1lnirm~nu 

,\. C"lIIill 1!~n rli :ohi l i l il'" 

Ii) Claim~ 9~~i"'l lh..- Cnml .... II~· I"'t ;J .. i.;IIO"lcd gL-.J ;J.i "'d~ S :l i un the n: 11I.Jrtill~ J;Jlc ;Jre .\'i l (.) 1 "-\;.INh :O!.\· t'11). 

II. COnliIl2~nl :o .• :ot"'b 

CUlilingell l A.~""'I.~:J..~ olllh.: .,"p..'1 rt i,,~ d;Jle :Ire .\'il ( .' 1 M:Ilc112u::3 Nil). 

C. C'"I1I"j lm~1I1J 

( i) E~lin'JIo;J "mount o f .:onlr...:1~ '''-''':lining lil b.: e"<\:'I1~-J no O;:ll'il" I :I.:cwnl(l lCt n t' "Jane.:) :111.1 nol I'ut\"ided 10 . iei .\';113 t MJ n.: it 202): Nil). 
(iiI Other l'o"ull illll~'111 lO<\3rJ< Ere Sub--t:omr.rel \\~"k n."lII:1UIIUg lu. ," 'l:e..:ul;oll ( lid 01 ad\':lnec) :lnJ IlOt rrO\iJL-..J lu r 011 ~b,,:h 31, 2U2 ..1 i ~ [h ..I 7'J)(..I i6 Lakhi () ) M:I! .. h 
:U::l; '»!lC .lI.; u.kh~j 

(I) G~IIf'r:" Inr"nll:II;UII 

(Jf'."r" l il1~ s.:!:lnl.::nU ar.: J .. li.. ...... t :u ;;01111"" ... .,11:1 of:U1 eul.:r]!, I"': I'm "hieh di...:n:I .. lill':IIII:;:l1 infurm,'lion is :l\lIibble \\ hl .. h i~ being I,:I":lhI31<."'" n:gularly by Ihe ChicfOp..:r"lil!~ 
[)...-..: i,·ioll MaL.:er ICOD~I) in dL .... id ing h OI\" In ~no.::"l .. r;; ."IOllr .. .:< :mJ ;! <,;c~'I II~ ("t: f i'llmla".:e TIl': Ilo.:Ird nf [)ir.:e lo ri o f Ih.: (;ol1lro:m~' is Ihe C hicfOf't: r~l ing Decision 1-bkel 

ICODM j. TIl': Comp_lIlY is en~";;"'J ill Ih..- bt l ~il l<;~s of inlh.'iUlI .. llIre de\'d Oj'lIIe1l1 in Ihe ~Ial~ of Mahar.u hlr" alld Ihe (.'hid OperaliI1S 1)... .... isiOlI MaL.:e. (CODM) nlO!l ilOrS Ih .. 

Ul'er: llin!l fl!" lIit. ol ' lhe IotliillC<" 3 .. " i ingl.: -.;~ mL~11. [1.:lIe ... the CO I1l f':l ny h.,-; <Jn ly one rc pt1rt~hr.,1 ..;.,;!trm:nl. "hi.:h IS [)e\dOpIlIL'fl1 of E"rre~s\\";ly. Inl"o l1l1alinn " ll()IJ l Ihe 
rcpofUhle ..... g'·mcnt is <:I1I1e ~~ rclkcled ill Ihe li ll,II 1<: I:11 <1:llell1"II1.1. [kl lCe. 110 ~"I';) rJl': ';':~ ll1eIllIICL-Jt lu II.: dl',c lo.;.:'" in ~~eorJ~ rlCe "jlh Ihe rClfuire lllCII1:i o fhlol AS IUS 

(iii ,,,rur"'''ti ..... ~bcHH !!('(]!.r:lphie~1 j"rorm:otiull 

A, Ihe C"IlI.'<m~· opo.·r:l\e.~ ill;l ,illgJe get)gn'p hl c:r I .;':!!II I L~ltl e . h .. .lI:1. '11lelelore. Ih~ re 1 ~ III) 'ie l", r:lle n;pofl;J\)k gcugr.:rphi .. a l ';':£I.ln~'11. 

(iii) Inrur", ,, 'iun :l llOulfII:ljorll"u' lu,,,., r 

R..:\·Clw..- u(Ri • . \ 1!t77.9.:! l aUu It'y 2(122·2.\ . Ib "'S..I2 2U t...ll;h ~) " • .: den.eJ (1011111 ' ing!.: cu~tomer II." NIIAI .. hi .. II;" mOle Ih:lll IU·. 0 1" the Compally' 5 lOI.1 II"-\·Clllle. 

1., I-ln:lm,'i3I Iti..k .\I ",ul!l'"wnl 

f ll .. CUIII,U"y' f pfillCip.a1 t;n:alll."i.1.1 ri.1.bili li.: ~ <;"Ot1ll'ri --.; bun U\\ llIgi, Ir:l<l.: 1'-l ~ " I>I.:: ~ ""J Oilier l>.lpbl.::~ jl1 dOlll,:s li .. "1Im:n;;y. Thl." 1\1-1111 1lI""""': or lhc ..... liIL' llCialli3br liliC<! i" to t;II!IrIC"­
Ih.: CO"'f':lny·.-c op..:r.Jl;oll'" Th.: Cornp,my' ~ IWill':;I""lli'L"UlC IJI a~";";1J incluJ e tr:kl.,1 .11"l l.I lher roc.:i':lbks :11..1 C3s h :III..! ,,:1>h eqlli \·.1I..:IIt , . Th.: ('oml\,lI1Y ii e ~ql()S("J 10 Ihe roUal'inS rijl.:~ 

rrom iii u . ...: uf lin."lCl:11 i,,,Inl ll'cI1b: Cn'dit ri )\: . Li .\lIiJlt"!-· risl; anJ MML.:':I ri sL.: . 

lU~k )1:l1I~!!~I1\~nl Fnlll('\\'utk 

Th..: Conl l \'1ny ' ~ .1": li, ill..-.. 111-'\:C il -<1I<e..:plll> lc 10 \":Ioom ri~L.:. Til.: Comp,llI)' h.1.'; taL.:cl\ JJe'lu;lIe m",HlI n:~ \ 0 .1JJr.,1SS Sll .. h .. onc":OI.!l b)" Jc\dol'uig aJ .. qll:l l..: .~~;;Iellu :lIIJ pra~' i.:.:~ . The 
n~rJ of DiIL .... lo", h3. o \'cr:l1I n:~pon"bil ity for Ihe ,:,·I.1hli~hmL~l1 allJ o\"Crsi~hl o l"lh.: Cnrnf'3I1Y' ~ ri sk m~I ~'~~m~"TI1 frJl11ewo,1; 

"l Crf'fliIRi.d, 

Cr~-..lil ri .~L.: i.1 Ih~ ri.~ L.: of lil1;II I<: I;.I1 lo,s 11.1 lire C"I11II;Ul~ II" J ~Ilil o rn cr ur ..:ou illeli'~rt )' 10:) li .1~II .. i~IIII ~ II\lI11~'fl1 f~il~ 10 OIL""; ilS "'"IIT~eIU ~ 1 OO [i !:l~ l ium .e ~uhuIg in:l lin:lllCi:r. lloss 10 

Ihe CO I1\ llllJlY. Credit risk :lOs..-1 l.nll<:ilully liOlll lraJ e r~""~ I\ ahk~ . c~~h :1110.1 e:lsh tl'1Ui\lk,l lf "ilh b:Jn L.: s :1I1d olher till:tll.:iul ~ ~>.C1.1 . Thc COI\1I"'III ~'~ e~rnsur.: ;Il k.! ~rcJit rJlinjU 
0 1' il.1 COlllllcllurties an: .. onlinous[\" mou il.lre'" b} Ihc 1l1~11:I~~111~11L. 

C:o~h :md n~h f" I";":okn" 

l1 lc CO>11luuy hdd C:hh mid 1::1 :;.11 e,-!lIi\3Icnl ~ o t" I~ ~ . .I11\~ 11-(, bkhi (J I ~ I ~n:h !I ).:!'\ : [h ·1.1J I~ \';h~). 'llie ,;: .. u h :mJ ":I , h ,''-!ui\'"lcnb UIC held ~I r"l b[ i~ ;.:o;lor b..r.nl.:i \\ilh ,·tl un!! 
tl~Jil r:llil1g ~. 

111e CumJl.:l II~''i ":"I".hlll" \0 .::n:Jil ri.i k i~ in)hIL'1IC,:J 1Il~lIllr hy lire ~h;lIx\cri3 Ii c, 01' lire "",Iomer. 111t demugral'hieJ of til<." ':U., IOIIIC(, in.:[ ... Ju I!! Ihe J d 3Uil risl; of Ihe indu,lr: 
31lJ tOUI"I) III I' h ieh Ihe .. 1I"on,,,. 0 l ... ·.al..-~. 31,;" II.: .. JfI inllu· ... lCtl till c ... -.Jill i~l.: :I.<,....,.'melli . The t.:OInp.:1ll~· Jt lh'e~ !"t,'<11IlC l.rim"l l i~ (rOllt Ihe Cous lruction of EXI"e"''''':I)' and 
oll1.:. lin:UIC;JI l S,;cIS p rimal il) rd,llc"\" 10 til .. : 1II1>111.:J ,c'elllie Ill,,",er St:r\·i .. e t:un .... :~sion AIf;t.n!.tcrn~~lt (SCA) '111<." cn",j l (isk ,,", in!! from the...: Ir.lJ c: ft:cchablc~:u iJ IInbin~'" 

n:\,,1tJ .. L1 l;miIL-J J."... .... au>.C Ihc "oul11tlrJUn~ h ~!lllulul "'l'h\\:1) $ J\lIIh"rIIr of '"Ji:r. ( N IIA !) . • 111 ;I .. IollornOli i :lg,--ncy o( GO\'t'nlll1~'111 01" hrJi:J. \\i lh <.:.:ll':l.;i ty 10 m~ .... t Ihe 
obli~t io,,~ mrJ Ih"-lelU.e. rhc ri~ l.: of .JelJull i~ >en: 11\"~1; l'lblcur NIl. 

(i) I-:'fl'I",urf' hi (ff'f'it ri~ J,; 

I':art icu la r.,- ,'-':II .\, ,,,1 

Fin:a"..:;,,1 .\s .. "('(~ rur " 'I,kl> ",n,,,, "'n,'~ i:nlf " , urf,J lI~i ,, ~ I: l1Iu"tl~,-;:>::c.,,--,"-.... 7C;::'-~;;:JiI-;-'~"-. "--':';CI.fC;:C:.~I.:-) _ _ _ _ +-.:'c::'.::."::.:"::"::"=-:':.:02::'+-.:'c::"::."::.:'::"'::·"=-:':.:013"-1 

TrIlJe lh-..:e"·:I!-1c 

0Ih,,:, C lIrr~'1llfi ual1<: ia I As"-"li 

1',,111 

J IU3 .rJ6 

2,'JOO51) 
I j,M7. jl) 

ll,671.14 

4 . U 

L2..11.6~ 

2, lUl.8'J 

7,.H7.6..1 
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freon Alduli-Shinlul E~prcul\';ly UrnilCl1 
CI:"':_U~~U"!)LlUl! (;0 [J') lfi!" 

:""'''1 ..... r"l1l1ill~ rUI "rlh~ Fin:"",ia! SI:.!lrlllt"n1~ 
IAII.n..,unl.i"lnJi"nll.ur .. :c, L,kI"ur.l~",.h.:"";";;'IJI .JI 

(ii) SUlllln~r1' "rdl""~\' in Io,~ ~ ~Il\lw~ nn',' me",u.rN US;,," ,"iillllli\i .. ·" appr""dl 
I'~rlkul;lr. 

O[><,ltill:.: . \llc",,,n\'e~ 

llll jl:Jircll .. nll .. H' r"":c)!!.J\ i~" .lurill~ III.: 1-":1;0..1 

,\nmllil l 'Hill~·''''''lrJlInn .. III .. -..:rioJ 

Tu',,1 

!':.Irlkul ~r~ 

()1~"in)! . \II"""II.·u 

IIII p;li lll1cllllos"" rccug.lli .... " J~rin !! Ih.: ~"'rioJ 

"m"CIl II \\rill~'HllrJ\lrin!! lh"l'eri o,J 

T ul:.!1 

,\,.;11 

Jhl .'l:Irdl.10l~ Jisl :'Ihn:h, lll2J 

,\'''1 .h ~I 

Ji st ;\brdo.,1U2~ JI ~I ,\l:In:h.10ZJ 

No ~ 1 ~lI it'le:"!l ,;h..!"!!.:,, in e ~ l im:ll iOll I .. .:ill\i'ln e~ or a .N ulIp""''-' \\ere m:llk Juring the rCllO r1in !,- yc..:l r. Dun,,:; Ihe Y..:.1r, Ihe C<lIllI);II\Y h", reeo~lIlI ...... llo~~ ,,11""31I<:e nl" Ni l 0 hi 
M:.Irch.::!I)~J : lkNill · 

h) U'lui<.Jiryrhl.: 

1.i'''liJi l~· ri4; i1 Ihe risk Ih:1I Ihe COUl I);UI)" "ill el l<:OUil!e r dinicllily ill m .. ctins, Ihe obli ~nliolls 3ssocbl",l "ilh il ," lin.l ll<: i.llliJt>ililic' Ih:.ll;1n: senbl by d.:ii,'cring ea, h II r :lnother 

Jill .. lllcia l ;li,.,;l . T he COII'I'''n~ '1 ;LJ'I'r<l:JdIIU 1II~11.~~ill~ liquidiIY;$ 10 cll , un:. ~ s I;'r ~~ l>o ",,;i ~lc, Illal il "ill h..l \"e ~u meicm li')l lid ily to lIlee l il.~ li"hililie,; '\hell Ihey Jle .tIle, ulI.l~r 
bUlh ' ''m\l~l ;111...1 ,;trc~scd ~<lliJlli()ni . \llIh<lU( illeurring IIIJ.lceerl:l~le la ,s.. .. ; or ri~ J.: i ll!:t- .l..llnage 10 Ihe COlllll:Jny· .• "'1" ' \.:1lioc l. Li'l"iJiIY IlO1 ilion ot" Ihe COmll:lllY ii le,ie ''''J 011 ~ 

r e~lIbr ~.1.'1S b~ Ihe n"~IJ o f Di reel"r~ JnJ JpprOpriale .tc,,;\ iolls ~ re t.'\;~'1 acco rd ing to Ihe ,i Il13 Iioll. 

rcnlll .u:lnl"rO!\l n :l,lIki 

I.e:!."'! Li,,~tl i l ic, 

Tr.l,tc r'..I,~b le 

Tnl;l l 

J' :!.rlicula N 

TennJ,uan l"r('lm lhlll..:,. 

l.ea"" l.iah i li ti~ i 

Tr:t.lc 1';I\ ahlc 

c) :'I1~r],;~1 ("i~ 1.: 

6.72:i..l'} 

56')7 

l .t"S!J lhanlYn r 

.J,J1(\.')1) 

1!.0-l 
·-IJ1!J,OJ 

51 .. US 1; .u5 5 . 2~ 15 ,5711.(1) 

(,.125 --I ') 

5(,.97 

SU.711 15.0;::5.22 !!.3S1A6 

.·u;uJIII .\Ian:h 2111J 

51.J .n 2.555.22 J .()7 0.lJCJ 

·1..11 6.9" 
I.'!.I}..I 

SU.78 1,5:SS.:U 7.J99.0J 

~hrkc1 ri,·J.: i~ Ihe ri.k Ihal Ihe Ii.!i r 'ahle 01" fulure cash 1l(1I1~ o t" 3 tin.31K:ial il1 slnllll.:nB "ill l1uC!u31" bo....:aus<;: uj" eh:m!;lc$ in nlalJ.:c ll'rit:" ~. MalJ.:c1 ris l.: comprises F('Ir.:i~1 

eUrrt,;IICY ri~ J.: :mJ hllere .. ral.., n 'l.: . nlc olij"cti>e Q fm~lkel ri,·J.: 1Il.l1 J.:l£WI11~1\1 i~ IU m:.lnage:utJ ~onlrol marJ.:c1 ri sk e"'poslll"'~ \lith in ueccplahlc f"Ifam elen;. \I hil.: oplimising Ihe 
re lurn. The !loafJ lIt" Din"':I<lN " r':11">l11ihle for selling up of llOlic i"s aliJ l,roceJufcs 10 malJ.:lgc 111:111.:.:( nsh of Ille Comp"my 

InlHt"sl r~l .. ris l. 

IU lc r.:_1 r:J.le ri,1,: ii Ihe ,,,.J.: Ih~1 Ihc \:"';1 lahl" or Ihe hllllr" ';;h!t 11(",·s of J ! il l::"to:i~1 u~,ll\Im ~nl ",III !lue tJ(~\c bcC~J( St: or cJl.lII Ol':S in ma rJ.:eI ;, Ilc les( ralc~ .Thc COllll>:lll~ is 

c ~ I'0,...,J 10 ililcr.:~' la l.: ml.: ", i ,ill~ 1ll,Iillly lrunl nUIH.urrCIlI borrowings "jlh 110011U£ inlc r,:sl ralC t-.....:ause Ihe .:..:I,h llows :.!s..o.: i.ltoo lIilh 11001ill3 rJ lc oouo\\in\!, ' "illlhlelUJle 
\lilh chall!;"S m uu .. rCSI rJI':~ , 

I'"rtkul~r~ 

Hu"-r~lcjll'IrUllll'lItS : 

Fill:ll ...: iJ IA''''': I< 

FilI:Jll<:b ! I. i"bihl;cs 

" l rill hl~-r;II~ill"lnllllfnls : 

r-jll,:lIl<:i~1 ,\S;;': I.' 

fill.lIK:iul Liu ~lh tie, 

,h .. 1 /Uli l 
JI.~I.\lnch.2U2J Jhl:'lludo.,!U!J 

1)j70.00 3,e)70.UO 

66



" Ireon .\klllli·Shir~1t11 EXrrcH \\':l:" Limitetl 
CI~:·L1..t:-Jlt')])I.lU21(;OIJ9162~ 

;\U! .. " r"r",in!! r~n ur,ll<' Fill~lIc; :d Sf:lltll1l'lIU 
r. \1\ ~n ..... "l, ill InJi.n f("r"'c ... I .•• h, ull l c".~l",. "" ... 'U L~Jr 

JCI F:lir \· .. I,,~ :\1<,:& ~unnr~'III , 

:&) Fin:IIl!.,;,,1 in.lrumt·nb h~' C:lh'C"t~ 

Fin:lllc;:lI.\ s..~t. 

(i) Tr.lJ" Ilc",-,,,i,·abl..:. 

Iii) C:I<h :tJ~! ..: ~,h " <!1ril'31~ rrl ~ 

(LiiIO'h ..:rc"u rrenlljrun..:i~l :u",t.< 

Fi"".,,,;,,IU,,lriHlir" 

( i) n"rnm in!!~ 

( iiI T rJJe I'~ ~·ahl.: .. 

, iii ) O.halilurlClalliabi lili", 

I' :lrl ;'-ublr ·~ 

( ii) C..L~h anJ .;.., .~h r.:'JIli\(rl""l~ 

( iii) OIlie r ellrr"rrllitl.lrk:iul a,,,,I.~ 

j·;n",,"';,,1 Lbhililiu 

(i) n<l n<l\\ rll~ ~ 

Iii) Tr~J..: ['J~:llr1..:s 

( iii) ()lh..:r l il~lI...:iJI I ... l>tlilJ~ s 

.\ s:l IJhl :\ I:II"d',2U2..1 

~.?OO.Sl) 

3.IOJ.(}(, 

15 .M7." ) 

21 .. 671.2..t 

15j7U I}lJ 

6.725 ... -1') 

56.'); 

UJ:;~ . ..t(, 

..t .13 
2.WI8') 

2~ 

3.070.111.1 

..t.J](;.I)') 

1~ .()...t 

7J'J').UJ 

Filla,...: i:&l .Isse,," anJ lil ..... ...:i "lli~bililio;. :!r..: nre;l,ur..:,J al Iilir I~hro; in lhe..:: tir ~m..:ial sUlenrerns :lUd ar..: ::tlUU r .. :J i" lu Ih,.:..: lc, e l~ of!l llir ,·"h,,: hi.:rJr..:h ~ . rllC Ilue..: L.:\"d .. ar\: 
Jclin"J ba".;J OI L Ih..: uiN:r,ub!lily of si~l\jli.:.1rl1 iUI ..... ly 10 Ihe mC:lsurenreUl.:U rollow~ 

L,,.d I: l)tL,)( ~.f pric"s (ulladjl"leJ) in ',':Ii'e OIMhl,; fur iJ""1l1icJI a .. >SCI!; Of li~I' i lili":I' 

I .. clel ~ : II\[">Irl; lIlh.;r Ih~" '1lluleJ prn:C1 in..:h,JeJ "ilhin I.c'''..:1 I ' h ~ 1 arc oo""rYablc lor lhe as",, ' ur liabilily . .:ilh.:r Jir .. ...:.l1· 01 i,\Jirer.:l1y 

I...:,cl J . Onoh"'''lbl" input .. fur ."..: a~"" lor liahililY 

c) C un';I1" 1':11" .... nd F .. ir ulu .. ur r.n~nei ~ 1 u .... I~ "ud li"hi1ili .. ~ aJ atJls1 "I:ltch !U!~ :lIltI It.-I .'hrch ~U:J 

Fitl~".;i:ll A ..... ~I~ ~1 .. \r1 .. orlil(·J Cod 

( i)Tr~Je [h"'-',:i,~ hl.:; 

(ii I (;a~h .mJ ..;a3h "",\!iL\'~kllh 

(ii i) IAher crrrn:lllliu.:rn..:i.l1 :r~-;c'~ 

~.<)Qn. 5\1 

) , IOJ .. U6 

\5.667.51) 
2I,('71.2..t 

t...:wl .. 1 

F~;r \ ·~Iu .. 
l,('n~I-! 1 ... n·I-J 

~.')lMJj'J 

J .. IOJ.rKi 
15.667.59 
21,('71.H 

Fin~nd~II.i:lhilil;<'"S .. t .\murlil....J Cll~t 

( i)OutnJ\lin;!; 15.57U.00 15j7U OO 
( ii) TraJ.: l':lyJhl~; 6.72S.·I') 6.725.-/') 
iii) (l1h,'r lir ~meiJ lliJb;ti li~; :56')7 56 .1)7 

L--____________________________________ -L __ ~,~,.~J,~2:~,~6I~~~~~~~~t~~~~~~~~~~t~~~~~J,~,~Ji,~'~.'iij6 

r'~rricul:lr-' ----------------------------·---r;C;-,,-~-:-il1-,::-'·.-;-,"",-,-----------~,c.::,'.";,"'.".,":c:,-------------, 

··~=_~·~~=Jl.<~,~"J-I=t==1L~"~<I-tl::::=t=:::1L,,,,!! .. I~:c=1 Fin~~C;;__-----------t--

ti) TI~J" 1(,,'\.":;'Jhlc i S.2..tI.G~ 

\ji JC,,~h ,"iJc:l;h,,'I',,':1kll1 .• 

{iii) Ocher ~U IT..:nl lin:IU:;iHL assr.t.i 

Fiu:u,d:l ll.i:l hilili ... :It.\,,'''rl; '<'<.1 e",,1 

(i)lkorroll ;"!!s 

..t . U 
2.101 HI) 
7,JH.6..t 

J. (I7UOO 

·UI6.IJ'J 

j .2~ ! ()~ 

..t . U 

J,Il11) (/I I 

..t .JL6IJ'J 

======================t====~'~2.W!d==~~==~±=========~======~'~2.l~" _______ _ ____ 7,JII'HIJ 7J'.J'.J.UJ 

rh..: 1lI..tl l:lgerl rr.,n ;). .«:s~ Ihal fair va lue of eash:tJ.J o;.:I., h e'luil·~knl ~ . !I,hle r~i\·:lbl..:~ . Lwd..: flly:rblc.,·. :II.J olher curr .. ,,1 Lin.lIJcia l as,eB IblJililk, a l'l'rU~inr"lo; Iho;ir ":JrT) ing 

alllV"rrlS lJr~r;lr Ju" III Iho; lIkun .. lcmL rmllurilio;~ or,hcSo: illSlnrmellls. TIL": f:rir 1·"lll": of the Ijrr.:mc bl " s:.o; b auJ liabi lilies i, iJ...: lu..teJ ~I ,I!.: al1rmn"~. "Irieh lh..: i",IIILIll"'ll .:uulJ 
b.: c.'(ckang.:Jnl..t .. 'urr .. "1L1'Ul l"-lCliurrb.:I" ..... ""Lllillsru11;O:s 

JI C~p;1:I1 :\ l:ina!!"",o:n l 

111': Clll11l';I11~' .~ uhj .. -.:1tle tu lH ,Ulag..: lIs .:al'il31 ill a rna rUlCr Lo u ' mro: al.J §:It"egu;).nJ Iheir ahilily lU conlilluo; a .~;J going "OO"':CnI o;<.J LhaL lh..: C011l1'~ny ..::l" e.,.lIinuo: It) rrm iJ.: lILa,imnrn 
relUnl t lu sh:If .. ·haIJe'~ anJ be,,,,I;1 I:J uther SlaL.:drulJas alJJ Jl so 10 m"i,"~ jn ~n apl' fO l'riulc ..:.:Ipil31 ~l ru..:lllrc of debl m.J equily. Th..: e~l'ital 51rucll,rc uf Ih" ":"1111':111) is oo.«:d u" 

llla'U~"l1h."1'( oj jud!!ern~nl irt' jt.~ 'IrJlcsi.,; anJ ..taY .. lu-Jay n,:.:..t ~ wilh u nxu~ un lulal equity so as 10 lll" i"l"j" i1ll0:,lur. c • .:Jilof! :IJ\J m~rJ,;eL .:....,LiJ,'lCe. The rnal ~J!!"rn"'lI :U.J Ih,: noorJ 
ufDiro:dor~ IllU", lur III..: relU IlI on e"pil:.!!. The C""'1UIlY Illar uio.:..: :rrprorriJ\c step. in orJer 10 rnairr l:!in. ur ifo,,,,,:c ~.<a r,· :rJjus\. il s C.lpit:.rl s.ru..: lurc. 
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Ircon AklHli-Shinild E11)re~~W<lY Lin.itetl 
CI;\':_ L' ~:;JU9])U021 GOIJ? 1(,2\1 

.'\"01t·~ r<lnllin~ ll~rI orth~ Fill:mcbl Sbltnlellts 
IAI! ~n""'"I' ill Inoli, n I!.ul' •• -.. .. I.,ll" u"lc",~hc,",,,, ,1,1c.!1 

I hc c.:OIllf'-lIlY 11I 0Ili l~r~ capil:!l. ulI th" b.J.SIS 01" lIulIlocr Ollul:llk: ia] uliu$ g,'lCra)ly us.:J hy illJnslry anJ by Ihc ",jin!! l'~CIk:'c' Illc Comp,lllY 11l0nLIuni c~pilul u.iin~ Jd,. o:quil), r;lIio 

\\ hich is tlebl Jjl iJ,'J by 11lI~1 C,{ULly, J.)",Ll1 ':OI1li'ri.; ... ~ OIIIUIk:III1CnI aiM.! CUriCIlI IIIUIU,ili,' ~ ofloll<.l lenn JeI, .. '111': ,khl ':'I"'I~ r31'O.!1 Iltc ... ,oJ ollhe rCI'Olliug peli",,] \\a, 11,' lol1ol'~ ' 

l'~tlicul:lU 

lIurrQ\\'in~ . .;{NuleNu. 10. 1) 

Currenl M:llurilic'; ulLong lenn Ikht 

Ikht 

E'luily(NuleNu. lIl 

O,hcrE'lllity(Nule 1\" 'n 

I) .. hl E.ui[,· lhl;u 

Ibliu!:Ile!pr,1 to Ihe l\illure o lcumra~1 "ilh ell.lolller, thcre i, OlllyOlIC t~pe olc.:lle~/O ry oCrcle'lUe; 

:'\Ielll(loti ( Ilr Ule:uurill" rfurll l ~nc~ uhli"alinll Olhrr R ..... llu.· 

In III ~lrlh"ti 0111 UI .\, .. llw'" 

J1.S17.92 31.877.92 

3I,Si7.?:!. JI,!I?1.'.ll 

H .. Hnu~:I' IWr Iml ,\S 115 ) 1 .. 11"", rur 1II":I~ urin rfurmanc .. uhli"ll;nll Olh .. r n .. , rllll\' 

6.5~:! .2tl 

6,S·.&2.:!U 

Inpul ~Icthoti 

6j·n.2!J 
6,5~:!.l(l 

Oul u(:"Ildl,,'" 

.\.':11 .h~1 

JI51)lardl, ;W:!.~ Jhl:,\l~n:h.lUlJ 

15,570./)11 ),070.00 

15,5iu,UU J,070,Htl 

H.J ,OO S,OO 
5,~7·U.! 5.17:iJ] 
(,.Jull.51 5,IIIOJJ 

I.n 11.5\1 

111e COU1p':lI1}' has u'<!:J w s l iI1o.:urn:...! 3S illput 10 me3sure Ih.: pro~res~ lowards salist:"ctilH' ot' pcrJOn1I,:l>o.:e ohll g~lioo :mJ <,Inc lU Ihe lLllI,:ertaillly 1I1\01t.:...! in Ihe Ini!!:!1 [111.3.'>(: of 

Ihe eOlllr~~1 in "h:.:t.;.urin~ Ihc perlonlla,o.:.: oblig!!lio.lI of cOl~~lru~lioll ul high"'3}' roo"', Ihe rc' ..... mc i~ nxogll i,;cJ 10. Ihe e'(I~"11 of COnlrJc! eo~\ in.:urreJ in :l~~onhJl~e " i lh h-.i 

AS II Ji . Th ... 101:.1 rCI ... ,\ue rCUlgll i,eJ ulI.Jer Intl AS 115 Juring Ihe ~c:tr IUt 31,877.92 1..:l1:hi (lo r ,he l'"rioo cn"'~J J l SI M!J.I~h . 2!J2J : Its. r.5~~ . 20l-,l.;h,;) is reco!!-,,,""" Ol'el 3 

rcrioo ol'limc. 

II. C",lIr:>cI h~bn~'("1 

l'Irlkul3n 

Tr:I,k R~'Ceil'3blc~ (Nmc 5.1 J 

Conlr:lclAsscls NoleS,Jl 

Ii) COtllf'll CI A~sct, ;Ire recugJli .... ...J olcr Ihe I'CrioJ in "hlch scr.ices 3ro.: pcllormcJ 10 r ... l'rc .... "lll1e CO>l\['!J.II)'S righl to eOll>,J"r!!liOlI in ..:~ch:II\:;c (or goo.h or 'il!r\i~,,; Ir3I1sli;m;J 

to Ihe customcr. It inclu"'es h3.I:IIlCu "'U..: from cnslo,neN n,ldcr COIlSlnu.:lioli COtll r3c!S Ih31 3ris.: "hcn Ihe ComlUJlY r. .. 'Cei ... : ~ ['!J.~mclIls lrmn ~U .' IUl\lcr~ 3S pcr lemlS of Ihe 
eonlrll~IS I!m'c,er Ihe rCleml': is r ... -..:ogni,;eJ ol'cr Ihc period ulM.!cr iUI,nl OIClhod, Ally :l111(1U111 pre\'iouslr re<.:ogJll)leti :I.~ U eUillr:t ... t as.cl i~ TI __ -..:l:! s., ilieJ 10 Ir~J.: r ....... ch·"hles un 
":I li ,' facli un ;>I'lh.: eOLlJilioll :&It:ld,,:ti i..: . lin"r': 'il! r\'ice "hit:h is IlCces~ry 10 3ehi':lc Ihe billill!; mile~IOIh:. 

~~~;:;:~~:~in("ntncth~bn(ntiuringlh"HU ________________ --r;oF'-"-:;-",-"-.e~-,-.. -: .. -,,,CT""F'-"-:;"'-'-_-"-"-,"-:"--:"':-
JI ~I)breh:ZU:!~ Jln)ludlllllJ 

C:OIllr,,-;;-:;-:~-s.:-"-"'-,"-'k-'gi-'lLlin3"11~1C--ri-""----- -------------------t-~="__'O,.';C""',;;."',;cj-===--";'I.~" 
CUUlrJd 3S"":1 JI lit.: enJ orlhe pcrio,J ! 5,M7 .5" ~ , IIII .I~') 

....... inH<':Ikl "' ..... rtll"<') IJ.567.~~ 2.100.15 

For Ill".: Fill:tJ>c~~1 202J-lJ ;11 ... [ ~U~~ -2J - 11lere hll.S been all 11<:[ ,,>crc.:~ ,,[ ft-, lJ,)67A-I L.1l..h~ 300 R. •. 2 Wt) I) 1..:11.;1" ro.:"I"'-';IL\d~ :1.' ... <>II1I .... rcJ 10 pr~\'ou.; j~:lr Jue; ILl 

le~u!.lJ1ili ono['fe\ellu.: ru"",cJ OLi inpllll1\"'lhod. 

iii; ConlrJ~1 li!J.bil itie~ ro.:l:ttin!!, lu com-lf\k:lioll cOlltrac\s .. re b.,bJlCe~ JlIe 10 cuslomers. Ihe.;c 3ris.: .... heLi ~ p:trl'~lIbl mil"sloLlC p.iym~'\1 e,\c .. "U!, Ih.: re'ellue reeo!;ni ,;,.'J 10 lb[c 
ul,Jer Ihe inl"Ull11clhoJ;uk.! ~JI':UICe rc.:cLl'eJ ill Inn!!- lenll c<)fL.;tn'~lion eOlltraCli. The ~JI\O\l nl 01 Adl'~u~" ,,-';':1\cJ 3"1.'1 :.t"'JII,kJ OIer Ihe CfHhlructil)LI period J~ auJ Ilh .. '1 

ill\"ici:1~ ill1\JJe l<> Ih!; ~\L.'lonler Thw: :ll'C noContf:l~1 li'hili\i~s M 31 J I M~fch :!U2-I ,u,J 31 "'!:Irch ~0:!.1 . 

~~~;:;~~::~:~IMin~"nlr~clb~bIKe~tiuringlh .. , ·~-------------------r;;:F,::,,-;;:",::-":::,,:::,::: .. ::;,d::-"'~-;;F,:::,,-;;'h::-,_:::'.,:::,,:::,"::;,,::; .. ,:-

CUl1lr3~tl;abililie~:tllhc B.:giI1l1ingol'he perioJ 

Cumr3cl li:&hi lilie' 31 Ihecll.Jol,hcperioJ 

C. Sl'tuul ""'Iuw,s Ill\' ~n>l>ont u(rr,'toue rKu"nu.ro from: 

l'~rlicul~n 

Amou'lt i'><.:luJc:J in crnllr"clli:!bililies ~llhe bc!ti,uliugoClhe 1"''fioJ 

I'crlo m':tLlCc oolillaliou ~lis'icJ illl'lc,ious perioJ 

D, C .... tlu"hl:ainth .. c(Jfllr~c l 

' \111011111 f ... 'Co~uis.:J a .~ 3.~>C I 3S al 31s, March. !U~-I is;\"il (Ai:ll J l Si ~brch, 2ll2J : Nil) 

t:, Tun~acli"n I'rk~ ~1I".;~ll .. llu lhe- nm:.liuin; pc'rr"rOl~rto.'e uhli;alinu' 

Jhl ~l3r~h211:!~ Jln :"Ihr~hllllJ 

,\',:al 

Jht -'br~h,lO!~ Jhl-'hn:h. :!o1l!J 

'111e IrJ"s.:J ~li Ol I price tilr remainill!!. perronna,><.:c obli!ptiolls sh.:lll be I«ci\'cJ o\'er Ihe eonlrJ~1 p.:rillJ in Ilrol'Orli~~1 "r,he "urI.; r..:rlonlleJ 'oCniccs prn,,"'cJ by Ih.: CUIllp.1UY. 

The lilllo" ill!! l.lble .lIU11 .t UUs;Jl i . li~J IlCrlilnl1allCC obli!J.aliou.~ resulting (rum hHlg-Ierm ... omlrueliOlI contr3clS 

1'Irlkul~r~ .h~1 

Jbl :"Ib rch. !I)l~ JJ,t -'Iudl, :ZO!J 

Rtf .. rnotr ~) Rrfulwle ~) 

Wilhll1 UHe lear ~2A I ·U~) '.l2.55! ~'l 

500 011 1-I.232.)j 

3,:-175 .;)/) -I.H3 .UU 
Tn(:l1 ~r.,7" " .J'" I, I IISVU 
,"nit'. 

(J) The anlOlJlII "'1 ..... lus..·J 111;oo1'l: Joc ' IIUI il IC I"Je 11l ri ab lc cOI~~iti crJliOl1 Ilhi~h i ~ cOl~~lr~illcJ. 
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freoll AI;.Juli-Shin:1l1 E:\IJrcu,,' a~' l.imih~tl 
CI1\":-U~5llt9UI.2D2IGOIJ'JI(i~'1 

~ntl'S rurlllill~ I'~rllJr Ih~ Fill;UH;;i~J St~ltnl\'lIl~ 

IAlI.n ....... nl " " InJ i.nk,,!'.:,:, r..IH"wll .. "., .. I"',"'i ..... I.I"JI 

JJ s.-n'ic~ Clll,,: .... .,:.ioll '\IT~ nI-:CIII~nt3 

D is.: lo';urc l "IN~1II 1 10 Al'l'CIIJit l) o f [nJ AS II j "S.:: r"ic.:: Con..:cssiOlI '\fr:uu:.::m.::nl~" i. JS IIlk.kr: 

~) D • .:~ ril'li,," urth .... arnn:,: .. mtlll 

[rcoll Akloli-Shir .... J E SPTCS' \\:.IY I. imilc" (1IUJIIIISEL).:1 \\holly-o"IICJ ,ut-siJiat;. of Ircun Imcll~,tiof\al Limit.:J has k.:CII iIICOI1'UrJI..:J U.f ..l Sp':":I:.I1 ['url'.:I';": Vchid..: 011 

rk",,:cllIl-..:r 2-' . 2021. l'urslI:1I11 ttl a <.:<.tI>Jili()l I.' '' ~ sti['lllalcJ ill l...:lI..:r of ,'"arJ i ,su~-..I b~ Nalitlcl:Illli ghw~y AUlhuril) nt"h>Ji:l (N l 1 .. \1) . lrcc>n ,\klnli-Shir s.a J E"'l'r~ ss"a)· l.imil.:J 

([rc<HlI\SEI .) 1I~.i ~'Il<':TcJ in In scn;ce eOllCe.iI iocl arr:lI1s.:m~'lI un 271h hnua~' 2U22 "ilh Nali(.IIIal lli!:!h"J}" aUlhtlril) ut"lnJia (N I IAI) in lenni o f \Ihi.:h Nl IAJ {AUlhoriIY) h"s 

aUlho ris.:J Ihe conll"'uy 10 ,,;;trT)' Ih .. • ht"'i llC',s ot"Com'tru":li,'M1 of Ei!!,hl 1.;11>": J C<':C" .:,11111011..:..1 E.'prcs"'JY (rom Km J .VOC) 10 Kill 21).200 rJ':sl::,:n kll:tth 17.100 kill) frum 

Shiru" 10 Aklu li S,,:clil~ L S['IIR or" VuJ,ilir..l MU lLL hai Expr"s~ l\a~~h..:rciIL:lncr cali..:J lh .. ·VaJn .. br~ ~i"'!1bai Es pr.: ~s\\'~y ) in Ilic Stal..: of 1I.'bllaTa,;- hl~ ul!..ler nh~rJtIl1J!a 

l' ar iyoj:.l1lJ (I'I L:lS<: 1l - I'Je ~..Igc XIV) hy Ei!!,h llJllin:,: Ih .. ·rcol" {Ihc "l'r<)j~'..:I-) lin 1I.lbriJ /\nllui,y baSii. \\hich shall b.: partly 1111.1.11':":..1 by th.: c OlI<:':.''; loll.:lir.: "ho sh,,1l n.·..:mcr its 

iUI<': ' II11~'lI .:LI>J co,\..; through l"",l ynlc"ll<l b.: Hla<.lc by Ih .. ;"l1 horil ~· . in accur<.l~,IC': I,ilh Ih.: lerm.' allJ ':OIlJilillll' s.:1 illlh.: COllI:cssioll ~~rccm""It. 

h) Sil!:nili<:~nt t .. ll1L" "f Ih .. "rr~n~ .. m o: nl 

ij f'..:rioJ IIrllle COllccis ion : 13 Yc.:ar~ Irom COlLLlllcrci~1 O['l.:r:.lliull OJI.: tCO!)) 

ii) Cum>lruct;ulI reri,"] : 5~~ .. tJ Y1 1rolll AI'['I,il\l..:J Dal..: i . ..: . frullI 10 11 12U22. 

iii) ['aym ... '11 remn : lI iJ Prnjc":L COSI ( n rC) - Rs . 112~ crur.:, ~CJ· o (,l"th,· llI'C. :lJju.' I.:J fur Ih..: r'ric..: !I\Je~ ~ll1ll i p"', shJII b.: <.Iuc al.,J l"' y~"lc ill III c ' llIallll" I:d lmcni>' ot'.J ° • ..:a.:h 

Juring Ih.: COIbolnlcliulI p.:rioJ all\l r"1ll3ining m'c. OIJjusl..:J lur Ih.:: ['ric..: Ir" k.; Multi ple, ,'hall b.: Juc :111..1 l"')a ~le in)() bi:lluluul installnl .... '\.' co mmc1lcing frOIl1 Ih ", ISOlh Jay 
(I(CO ]). 

[n I..:rms ot' Ihe <.:li J J,¥CCnICnl IrcOlII\S!:L h~.; 1111 n;,;hl ULII<C Ih.: sp..-.:ili..: .. 1 ~ ss.:t~ Jlkl h:l." JII ohl i:,!"liOiL 10 C,III1I'I..:I": cuu,lludion u t'lh..: Ilroj ... -.:I :l lklM k"'''11 Ih ..: 1>TIl]ccl ;1'<cI' inl'mper 

IIU rkill!! COi1<lilioli illdlilling all PIOjc..:ti ;"<cI.; IIhlh<:: li l'c' h~I'c ": ~ I'ir,,'d. 

I" .:"s.: of nlal..:riOlI brcach ill I",rms 0[' a!!rc":lIlc1\! Ihe NI I,,, un..! Ir.:oo:lI\SEI. hal'" rit(hl III Icnnill,:!!c Ihc agrc":U1~"1 it' Ihey "r~ 1101 Jbl.:: In .,:ur.; \h ~ C\~'" 01" J..:flltil ill ~.:corJ:lIIC": "ilh 

c) Financial a.\~ I. (~n '"j,;e COlKI" .... ~i<.m rC"Cfi"ahll"s) 

T hc <.:ollll>Juy Ius r..:cogni .. ..:J unb illcJ r,,,ciub!..: of [h. Jj.M7.;I) l .;lkh~ (I\.s. !IU I HI) [.;l kh~J 1I1>J.:r "":f\i.:..: COlICC"IOII afT~II!:!~lIh .. '11 anJ .,·hol\ll uIIJ..:r Olhcr Fin:m.:ial CllfT..:nl 

,\.~s.: I~ IIhieh il ,~iII rcccil': ".I per I.:nm ol'lh..: <':OIIII":]CI bas.:J on Ih..: colllpletion oCmilcslone, h Oil J lSI ~1Jr~h 1Ul~ :lI>J Jhl M:m:h 2023 T': ' I,,--":li,cly 

J) l>i"",I"~ lIr(' "rr~Hnll~' and l>rolit! or Iu.~,~ durin" tIL .. I'ur 

l':l rlicuJu"!1 

COIllIaCI[t':l cIKIe Jl~c()i!Jlil.C..l 

A g!!r':!:i.1I ..: JII101l1l1l1fo,;(1,' in""lfr~-J 

rrolil ( I.o~s ) r~'Cognis.:J Jurillg Ih..: I'criuJ t'llr c~ch:lll !!-c of CILIWruCliOil sc"i~c lur J lill.:lrn; ial 0.' ,';':1 

AITh'l1ll\1uir.;ll!IllioubyCliclil 

(jro~' ;1111011111 <.Iu.: from Cli':l1llurCOIllr:lcl Work ,~ 

I) C"lI1pany:l~ ll .• \·s.." .... 

Fur thl" ~· .. wr .. 1IJ.-.1 Fur the ~'ur ('nJ«I 

)ht:,\luch~tJ1.~ Jhl:'\l :.m:h2Un 

3 [}I77 .91 (i5~~ .20 

,11 .457119 r;H~j7 

~~'I.OJ (0.J7) 

IH ,5(.S. 11I 73H.51 

111..: COml\;lJI~' hh 110 IC:lsi llglrrolllgcl11~nI \\ hich ~re IklCl-C.UlCcllJbl..: in n:l.lur~. I\ecor..lillgl ),. nu ,it(hl UI' US<: :L,,-<C IS al'" k :l": IiJbiliti..:, h'I\'''' 1><."1:n IC<.:ogr liscJ hy Ihc CUIIII'.:II1Y. 

111": COml):IlIY b, lak ... "11 O nie.: 011 I.:a...: \\ ilh l..:.1se I~nn~ 0[' 12 l11un ths or I.:~~. The COI11I",ny ~1'plic ~ Ihc ' S hort-l~rm leas..:' f"l."CO!:-'lil ;on ,,: xcl11]llions lur ,;u ,;h i..:ascs. 

"arliculan' 

ESI', .. '1l~ r.:blill.:J. 10 short-I':Tm k,,",s.:~ (!lcl;':r Nole 2lJ) 

") COlilpany:l! ~ IA"J.-.o r 

COlll l"U1 >' h:l ~ IIU 1~;lsi'l:t arr..lns;.:m,,'II l~ a Ic~ID r. 

:I) rhe [llim:il"JI amOU,,1 :1l>J Ihc UIl~I":~1 <.III": Ih..:rcoll r.:1II::iniu8 UlIl"lJi J 10 :my ~lIl'l'l ic r os al th..: ~,>J oC.;ach nccollnli,,!! ~ cJr 

f'rilleill.,I:lIII OC klil ,lU ll 10micr\l:l lLJ ~ m;lIl":I1I..:rp ri'\C~ 

IIII~rcsl ..lUll onabOl": 

b) Th", :lntOllill of illlcr':51 ""id by Ih~ l:ou.J'cr in ICn1\ ~ 01" S,,-':liOlI 16 01" th~ MSMED ACI 1006 :l long "ilh the al1\l)IJ llli u llh..: 

1-.:l ) nl..:nII1lJJc 10 th..: ~u]lI'li.:r I-..:yor'" lh..: ~I'I>oin\cJ ..b ~' JlIring c:l.:h :lecounlill!; )c.a r 

e) The :1 11101.1111 01 ;1II..:rc~1 <.Iuc ,,>J payabl.: lor Ihc ]lerioo ot" JdJy ill moki"!l ""yml'1I1 (\\hi~h hale b.:cn l",iJ bUI 11 .. ::.011<1 Ih..: 

al'pOilllcJ Jo~' J!.lIin!O th.: Y':OIr l bill wilhOil1 aJJul!! Ih..: illlcrc,1 s lk!c ilic.J ulklcr III..: MSlltED Ad 2006 

..I) 1h:alllouuIUfilllcrcsla~c'ucJal"'l~maining unl"'iJllllh..:..:,>J'1t'C:t.:haC<.!oulllills }c.:a r 

e) Th..: :.11111)11111 t)( t"ul1h..:r illlcrcsi r.:m:linill3 <.IIIC :II'" !",phle ":1"1:11 in lit" succ .. -.:ding y~ars, IInlil such J~tc "h"l1 Ih..: inlc(C'1 Ju.:~ 

;u abo,'': a rc J~l lIall y [>.:IiJ 10 Ihc ~ m~1I C'lllccl'risc t"ur Ih..: purro..: of d is.1 llu" UJICC:I ~ :I <.IcJu.:tibl..: ":x\,,,:I>Jiul1c 1I11<I..:r s.."Clion 2J 

ot'lh..:MSME[)I\~120u(' 

J6 Coq'M.ralo: Sod~IR"' I>OlIs jb;lil)' 

,\ ' 011 

Jht-'ludl.20H Jhl:'\l>IIrch. !IID 

N[1. NIL 
NIL N Il. 

NIL NIL 

NIL NIL 

NIl. Nil , 

NIL NIL 

rh.: COI11I~lL1y ii 1101 cowr..:d I1I1<t..:r .... "CliOiI 135 111'111.: Cllnll"'ni..:,; Act. 2013 ~J'" 110 CSR eSl-':lkl ilme hus I'-.:cn ;ll<:lIrr~-J Jllrin!:! Ih.: l;n."l<:iuJ ) ..:ar ~'I>..l i ll!!- J 1'1 t-t:Lrch .z02~ Jo.t J 1.\1 

Mareh1.LJ2.l . 

J7 L>i .... ·I,'"lIr"]>unuanltulJ.«(illnl!l60rl~COI1lJ1altil"',\CI2UIJ: 
11I,'r": ~r.: 110 IOJII., !!-i'ClI. im ',:sllIh .. "III S m."I,; Ol!..l !!"~r:lnICC gil.:l1 by Ihc COIllf"lIl)' Juring: Ih..: }":Jr ~l>Jill!! 3 hi I-.-lJreh !')2~ ~I kl J hi M:1(ch 2')2) 

JII AJdilionaIR .. :,:ublotyinrun1l1Iiun: 

Th..: Me" \'IJ.: 1K>lili ';;lIion Jal~J 2·llh /lbr.:h 20 21 h~.i um~,,,,~ ... t S.:hc..lul..: lit to th..: CIII11I!;Ulics ,'Cl. 10lJ i" rcsp .. '~1 u ( c~l1:lill ..!i :;c lo ,ure" "hidl lr..: II ppli.:abl..: liom 1 .. 1 April2n21 

Th..: Company has il\corpor~ I .. ...t Ih.: ch:UIg~"l( aJ ller Ih..: ';'1.iJ ~me,kln".'1L in Ih..: lin.1.ll<:illl l L:l1..:m':1I1s:u'" ~Iuw di .. dus.ur.:~ 3r.: lIIaJ ..: ill cuIIIJlli:IIIC": of Ihe -s.:1 iJ am~"I >JmCIll ' 

til T h..: COlnl"l;III~' h:.ls lit) tr3l1..:.:JclioliS "ilh COl11ll.:11lic~ slru.:k oil" 1111 .. 1.::, so..-.:tiOi I 2~R ol"lhe COIllI"IJllies A..:l, 20 1.1 (J r S~-':II\"I l OU 01" C'-'1I11>:lJIi",' I\cl. 1')5 6 Jllrll1!:! Ihc 111I.111C;al ~",ar 
~1>Jing J hi MJr.;h 102~ JI>J J ISL M:lrch 2023 . 

(;il Th.: C Onl ll.:lllY has nOllrJJ..:J or io'cst .. ,"" ill Ct;.')110 Curr~'lCy or Vinllal CUrT\.'le ~' Jllring Ihe lilI:JJICi:.1 yc.:ar ~l\Iill!! JI .; t Mareh 2U~J :.u>J ) l SI March 102) 

(iii) TIL": C0Il1I'.1 n~' Ju no t h,,1'C .Illy lkl L1.m; l'rop.:ny J~ 011 31,1 M:1fch 2024 :lIkI ) l SI M.H~h 202.\ . "h~r..: allY pro..:~"CJilig h:u hc~" lIIili3 1cJ or p.:uJing a~" il1~1 thc Cnlllll:iIlY I", 

11<)IJin!:l~ny [kl"lllIi I'TUpCr1 y. 

(;"j Il,c COIllI>.:lIl}" Jo 1101 hJ",: :lIIy prio r l-.:rioJ ..:rrors ill lin:UI<.:ia l y.:~r ~'klil1!! Ull 31s1 March lU2~ JI'" .1 hi .\-brc h 2023 III 1-.: Ji,<c lo-..-..I <cp,,,al..:l y ill S IJlcm...,n ot' chang.:! in 

(\.) Th..: COII I("'n~' h" ... 11<) c.1"":S ul JUy chJr !:i':~ O( -<.:It i'(:''':lil'Ml "hich ii y .. ·IIO I..: rcgis lc""....! "ilh ROC bc~OILJ III.: .1:11111Or: l-...:ri.iJ ill Ih.: Ij' ~lu..:ial ~"':<r "'kllll~ J 1, 1 MJrch 21J2J ~I'" 

J "I 1\-\.1rch 2LJ ~.\. 

(,i) ()urill!? III.: lin:III.:,,,1 y e .. r 2LJ2J-2~ "l>J :!o~~-1J. Ih..: COIll[>:my hal'e nUl aJ'all.:cJ or loa lleJ or ;l1lc,«:.1 lilll\l ~ 10 allY olher l-...:r WlI{ .. 1 ur ~·Ulil}'~i'· 'i!. 1I1<:11IJill!; I"relgn ~"I; li .. .,­

{ 111I..:ml~..,Jinr;c"l wilh Ih"'III",~"t:u"'iIL!!lh3Ith..:ll\lcllll..:Jiilf)· . h:l1l 

{ill dir~"Clly or ilkl iT":clly l..,JJ or in"csi ill olh..:r I-':N'Ml" 01 ,,'llili":5 ill.:nliJi..:J in any ma, ut.:r \\hal <o..: 'cr hy or 011 b..:h:lll' oflhc ":UII'I"IIIY (Ulti\l\3tC [)':I..:liciari~sl Or 

(b) I'rUliJe l llygll:HaILI.:.: ..... -.:urityorlh..: like 10 or Oil b.:h"lfoJ"lh.:Uhi nt:llcu..'I<:I;c;:<ri..:s 

( 'ii, During Ih..: lin:lIl<:i:11 yc.:a r 101.l.-12 ~lkI 2012·23. III..: COl11rany hu,'c 1101 r~"Cc; ... :,t 311)' t"unJ frol11 allY r-...:r,," I1," ) or clllil~ ~ ie, ). illCln'] illg (or..:i!, 11 ":lIIili.:.; (FIII1<rin~ rany) l,illL Ih~ 

II lk.1Cf'I.Jlkl ill~ ( \lhclhcr I":CON.:J in wriling or ulherlli .. ..:) Ihallh.: COIlIf"l IlY , .. h~n : 

(a) Jir~-.:tlr or i'klirectlJ" ].:,1\1 or im C, I ill olh":l r,,:rsons or ,,'\I;li..:~ iJ~,"iri.:J in :Illy 1Ll.JI I l<:f" hlllso.:: '.:r b~' ur 011 be h..ll!' o( Ih.:: FIUkli"g l'allY (lIhl lllal" lJ"rlCli .:i:lI i.:~) or 

(h) pro,;J..: :li ly gIlJT:I.II1".: . «.-":lI1i lyur Ihc likc Oil I-..:h:"I·ol· lh..: UhirllJI.:: n~'l<:ti~iaric, ... 

Iliii ') The COIIIl"..Iuy h,l ~ 110 1 g.1~ nl~...r au)' lo.1U~ :II'" J <.II:lIICC~ inlr...: 'L:lIUIC 01'1Q.J,,, 10 I'lomol..:rs. <.I i,,·.cIOr.. KMP J'.J ulh~ 1 rd"lc,llt.:Jrl lc , IIllh" li'~1r .. i,,1 :~a r ,,"' ill;'< .1 lsi M~lch ~U2~ 
~IIJ J J,t /<.lJl\;h 2U~.\ CXccl'llh.; lIIobi l i/,~lioC1 aJ I'UIII:": ut"IL' :5.I)I)O.O() bkhs gil CIi in F\, 22-23, 

\i~l rh~ C Olllj"1I1Y , to.:~ IInl h.1\': ~nr ill1n1ol'~blc I"upcnic~ ~s ~I J ht M~rch 2U]~ :l1>J .1 hi M:lT.:h 101.1 

( ~! 11,c COI11 I"'n~ h.:ts Ik l1 I><:~" J~-.:l a r..:J :I , ,,;11'111 Jd'~uh~r h~' :U'Y hauk o( 1;11:",.:1:11 in ~lilllli OlI or gl"cnllll~'11 or all) ' gOh"llulIcnl ~ulh",ill in III..: [""':III<:I ~ 1 Y": If .~1I2.1-2~ all..l 20~2-~.l . 
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~O!t"< ronui"f! pnl or till' Financial Sl;ll~nu.'nt' 
/ ,\11 ~n"""'l, ill InJi.n 11.111" '"'" I.J~I" ll"kM,~I ... ,,,i ... ,1,10:.11 

(:o.:i) COll\p;l ll~ ' i ~ lM.l1 re'lllircJ 10 ~llhll1it ,·t~telll~llt 01 ellrr~l\\ .l ~-;.,.· t~ lIilh the b~lI1.: :mJ Ihelc\urc r~.,,;(IIk:;IJliotl of the 'iIJI~m~'\1 Iii""'] by Ihe c" ntl',my \Iilh ban1.: ~nJ Ihe boo1.:,· or 

(xii) 111':: COl\lp:Ul~ Joc~ nOI hal'c Jn~' Ir~lI >.~e li()'ls in Ijn';lII .. i~1 ~c~r ~I)~J.';.I ,,[oJ ~o~:: _~}. "here II, .. euntl"~n~' ha ~ nul u,..-..J Ih.:: l"lrnmill:!-~ (roUl b~u1.:~ .1IIJ liuJJt<.:j,,1 instilulio1lS lor 
Ih..: spec;li.:: purl'0"'; Inr which it w". I,,\;en "I Ihc b...tIJJlCe shcd JJle. 

(xi\") 111':: COnlp;,ny ha.~ 1101 elllcreJ in :my Ir:Ill ... ~cli{>1I nOI r~-.:orJ~-J ;n Ih.:: b<luk-i 01 accoun\.< 111.,t h~. t..:~"n surren..lcrcJ or Ji;.;clo...:J a'i in..:lJluc Jllriuillh.:: ~c:.or 2'llJ·';~ 3111.1 2(122 .. 23 ;11 
Ihe 1:1X :l ~sc s 'n\..,nIS un .. ler Ih~ Income TJX 1\;;1. l'Hi l (Sllch :1.< """,:l reh 01 slIrvcy or ~ny olher rc!c,"1ll1 p!o\i,iQf1< ollhe lllC()nJc T3X ,\ct. 1% I) 

{.'1"j Comp:my has .lIlt r~-.;ci\eJ :.",y gr:UII, anJ JIlH:.oliun.< Junu !:! Ihe ~ .:ar ~lIJillg)]." M~n:h lU2~ and JI .<I M:.o,~h 2UlJ 

(:o.:\i) TIl<.' Comp;UlY.Jo.:, Uti! !I.l\~ ~uy t'Jpit.,1 Wor\; .. in .. rrog.r.: ~; .".1.< 3\ J 1-1 Mard,. ~1I~ ~ :.o'kl]l<l MardI. 202.1 Su o 3:;cing ulC:l.pitll WOIk· in- !'rn·.3r.:~~ i, 1101 !ll'l'licahlc. 

(~\lit) The Comp.1uyJo.:, aol Iu\.; any IUI:m:tibl.: A~.cl.i 3"..1 hllJngil 'lc A.".:b lInJ.:r !k\cl0l~n~nl ~., ~l .loisl Ma,~h.lI\2-1 a"J 3 hI March.lOl3 . 

( . .:.ix) The COlUpauy lollo.lw~ I;("! moJd fur O:':Ollllili.", of ProPCrlY. planl ~lki e'JI,il'mem :utJ Jecor.tu,~ly. ha~ 1101 re\"al,,~J any of il~ Properly. pbUI auJ ..:quipll1~nl Jurill:; Ihe FY 
2U23 .. 2·1 IInJ illFY2n22 .. ~J . 

(x~) 111..: pm,i~ion,ofcl:lusc (lI7) IIf s.....:!in" 2 orthe ACI rc:.oJ "ill, Ihe Cl'mjl."l.l1i.;< (l{c,lrictil)!l 011 number "fl.;.~~li) ItUlei. ';'117 :.0,": not "1'l'li.;:.oblc Clt lthe .;umpJJI)·. 

s..i\"o l':l.rficul~rs i'iurll~ralnr Ikllomina!"r ~1~rchJI.2nl~ .\I~r.-llJI.~1J~J %cI';ln~<' r{t':l5O-I1 rurchan~C" 

n,ur .. !h~lll5% 

a) Cutrl:m r;'lio{ill lim.:.) Cllrrc,nA<sct, .?J12 
lrlCreascintheCIlITc""1l1 
AS->clulCurr.;ul }c.:lr 
\,hmCOnll'.1TeJwilh 
Ihc]asly ... ar. 

b) Ixl.1h:quil)" rJ lio(uI,irn.;,) TOl.Jllklll 

,) Dcbl<:';"lcc';Q\"cra3"-: E.1.millg ~ lordd'l 'lCf"\icc 
r:llio (in lill'C~l " Nell'fOlil,u'lerIJXeS 

N"'u-<.:~.~h ol'crJlinHo 
.:)(rcll<ei-lnler~'il 

0) Relunl on e'lU il),ral;o (in N':I Prol;l.iallcrla..:.:s 
'.) I'rc(crc.,ICC ni,·iJ~ .. kl 

Sh.,rciloIJcr·; E'1ui~ :: .H 

[).;hts,:f"\·i<:..: ~ [nleo:_1 & :: .7.1 

Lc""cPJymelll< -Prill~ir ... 1 
R~I\l~nl ... nl .i 

J\\·.:rJg'" Sh~n:hot,Jer'i 

r~'luily 

Ojl) 

lr. .S.1 

1.21 

.. I(J .72". 

')1:5 .70° . 

hlCrea . ...:inl.oallill 
CUTTc""111 Y':'1r 
oonlll<lrcdl\"ilhlh..:la.,' 
Year 

Thec.omp.:lllyhlls l:.oken 
l1Iore1o;&nlhwu~h 

rdill!lllCing frum nan\; 
oflhroJ ... inlhc 
CurrCnl ~e!lr3i 
comp.:m:Jlolaslyc"r 

Ol.llheMlbsCllIi:.o1 
conslruction I'rop.rc~s . 

Iher,;()1lI113l1yulI.:luJeu 
Ilrolilnl3l1:\ulinth.., 
re'~1Iue ullhe year 
~.,kleu 31.0J .202~ 

c) !rl\"enl0l)' 1I1ffi<JIcr ralio (in CO.I of goo..b solJ 
lim .. ~) 

N.t\ 

7.83 

~) Tr:lJc f'1I~ablcl\ln}(l\"':r 5.60 
r:tlio tin lim ... s l GIO.is .; roJit l",rchas.:i" 

:527"\-1' . 

l.'N 

ITII:re3S<:in IheTru .. 1c 
Rc-.:.:i\·abl ... sinCurTe111 

Increa~e iu Ih.: TrJJe 
payalJles in ClIrT~'lI 

pllTchl!;C rcllllll Year 

TJ- Nct.;-;!'i ... 11IUmCl\·~;~~\:-''"-"".,-.I«,..''-' (7),-~'·"·,-io,-"I-\\:-''',c\;'i-"'-~-'",-·la,-, .-cC,-'uTT-"-,,+----IA6i----CU"'.7-l' ---",,"'.'''''-. -+=----4 
(il1liI)!Ci) ass.: l. _ CUIICnl liJhllili':: i 'll~ n!...I."': illihe CUllenl 

J\S<elulCurrclIIyear 
"1t.;nconll",o:U,,jlh 
Ihe lasl y ..... r ~11l.1 
illCreasc in lite IlC\'~"ue 

liomO]"'l.·r.1lioninlhc 

CUTTenIY':"1 

NclProlil Re\~"llle I'nnl OI'.:rJti()n~ l .':!1 360.-120, 
Onlhe subslCllll!l1 
';Olls lruclilHl rro!:!r cs~. 

IhcCOnll)."luyilll.:h,JcJ 
proliitnargillillihe 
n!\CIIUCin Iheycar 
~,kl ... J .l1.0} .2U2~ 

j)~~-'-"-r'C-IJI'----+;O-E:.o-",'-ing-, '-"",7,"-,,c-illl-"-"-' I-:C:-"C-,ita-:-. '''"En-'''c-'''-,.c-,-J.-c,:-.:.o,-".,-,hl:-l,I--- • .,-,:-,-:-,,+----,-O."'lil;+----='-:-,,-:-, . .,-o,o-· .--+-----4 

elllplo)"cJ (in '0) :uld la.\c~ Nel Worth .;. Tolall)..:bl -
Dcl"o:rrc-J T:.o\: LiabiEly 

h) RCIUlI 00 ;lI\'e ,;lmcotl (Iu',) ltlC-Olm:: !-!~11Cr~lc,J lrom In\"CS lm~1" 

hl\Cmll~'lIs(Fi'I!lI1C':: 

Ir~me) 

I11I.:1cas.o; in Ih ... I'rolil U, 
CllIr~~\1 Y..:.,r 

70



IrcoL\ Al.:luli-Shinad E1PI'"CU'1"a~' Limited 
CliX:-USJO<JUI.2(121 G01J9162 ~J 

:'\'nTM: r"nnin:.: [l:l.rlllf Ih~ Fin""':;:l.1 SI:l.lfm~l1l~ 
tAl! ~""~In! ' in lr>Ji.n I\"p':'" [.J~"'" "Jlk ...... ~r"'''.,''' , '~' "JI 

(ii) [r~'.II' Aklll[i-ShirS;lJ EXl'rc ~~ '\Jy Lirnil,';j (In:,~,,\SELl hJ~ ~nh:I\.,.t in Iv .;c f\' i~..: lAlll<:..:.<mll .Jrr:lUg..:rn~"lIl1l1 271h JJl1UJr;.' 2U22 wilh N:.u iOlLll [[j&h" '~~' :nuho ril}" <.II [nJi~ 

(NIIAI) in I..:.m~ Ill" hi..:h N[tAl \AUlhoril} 1 h!li ~ulh<lli <c<llh..: ~OIl1fL1lly 10 ":!lrry Ih..: bu~ j,lo,;« OICn",\ruclion olEighl Lanc Jc.:c~s ~otlt.o[kd E'''p''':~'\\Jy (rom Knt J .llOI.llo 

Kill 2U.2{lO ldcsig.ll 1<-'1131h [7.2fJ1 1 kill) (rum Shi.",J 10 Ak[()li Sc;;liOl' SI'Uk ill VJdoJ.HJ Mumooi E"l'r..:s.~ \\ ·:1~(hc.c il Lll)..:r c:zllcJ Ihe "V:auO!i1r.1 ,,"'Iumbai E ''' rn,;~sw:lY ) in lhe 
51:1h: 01 ~bh:lrJ ~[lIr.1 (l1),!.:r IJhJrahnaL1 P:lriyoj:lu:a t rh ... ...: II·P"": !..:' !!e XIV) by Ei:;hllanin!! th..:rcor" ( lhe ·P.oj~""I-} onlt~b riJ NUlUil), rosi,·. which .. h.111 I...: 1't11I!y liu:m..:cJ by 

Ihc cOl'oce ~,iI.llLlirc \\ho ~ h;llI fcc'''cr i\.< il1\..:'II11~"1U au.1 co<l< Ihrough l' .. l~n,~,u 10 r-.: m:ldc h ~' lhe .1lnh()riry. in :.lCCOf.tallCe \\ilh Ihc l~nn5 :lJId cooJilion~ SC I ill Ihc cOlK:e~~ioll 
~ ~r~cmcnl. 

Ir~ol1 ASF.1. h~ .; :.l"urJ~..J Ihe ~ I>.' I~ l1I~nli.JlI~-,j ''Ilfl.: IU [r~ollllllcnl.JliUII;II1.lmil~u.1l .. li:.;cu cos! "fib 1()(~1.2J ":lOn-l pili .• (iST 011 EPC CUl1lrJ~1 "'"is . 

'l1,c 1,;01I11"'lI~' IIJS Clller~.,j into !o:m ~gf~~,"ell1 fur Jl ~. "'11.') .37 Crur..: 10 1;II:m,,;c Ihe :llu le . ..uiJ ['roj .. ...:1 [".O Ul l1JlIk of llJfO<b Ull 26.08.21J22 :tIki /\I'I'OilllcJ J"'I": 1"1 .1 .• bccn '1UleJ hy 
NJ [1\1 on 10. 11 2U22. '!l,c COIl1P;u ,~' hJi reec;I'cJ Ihe J i~I)o.lf "" I1~~11 0([ 0;1.11 Jurin~ Ihe r ear R.i . 1~ 511<J l:rkhs (py 2U22-2) lh. JU1U IJkh,) . 

(ii i ) 11'er": i~ 110 ~hIU1S": in Ih~ :.llilhorl ...... -..! JIll.! i." u..:J sh:.lr~ capil:!! Ill" Ihc Cump.",}" JUrill!:, Ihe ~e:lr. 1 [1)\\CI'.:r, Ihc I'rollHller Cnmll;JII}". [1\.:01, Illlem;lIiO!l:Ill.illlil ~-..I in iI., 2~51h [k>aIJ 

~1cc1iIlS hdJ 011 (jlh I\pri!. 2lJ2J, hJS ~ l'l'r(".:J lhc modilicaliun ot" .::Ipilal , 1f\lelUre ol"lh.: C.llll["':Il1Y 10 incre~s.; the ':'lu;ly c.:Ipilal colllribul i(~ l by R.i. l"/ . I I eHlle alII.! n:'Juce Ihe 
Quas i·EI[uily (ln1<:,csl Frcc 1.N1l) "ilh ':'1"\1":11 .. "111 al1h"',,1 a.' l-.:r \.CIIJcr [l~nk:l ' , ~Jllo,;li oll..:J l..:nl1 Th'I .'I. Iher.: "ill b.: IKI aJJiliOlIJ1 tin:mcia[ implicalion (m I'mlllnt..:rCnrllp:lIIY, 

.·\~con.liIl31 r. the enml'all ~ ' \'Itll:l\..c ncec.~ ..:lf) ' aeli.ltl hi mer..::,...: Ihe aUlhor i.-.:J .<ha,.: .::1 1"1.11 to CII:lI1[o.: III" com p..-my 10 irr..:n;.l . ..: il-" ]>aiJ up shJr..: Cllpil:.ll a ~ per !..,lI.!c. n:.lnk.i ·~ 
Sa ll~tiolleJ Icm,. 

(i\') 'IIte COIllI'.:u ,y ha~ a '~'I~1lt '-'I oLI~iJl iJl~ l'eri~,J, .. ~' .~II;I1l,~t il)1l of b~ I.Il\\;c ~ liUlll b~ lIl.: .i :llIJ olh~r I"Ulie.i 

( I'J Inlhe opinioll o rlhc lIl~'I:I:;''':lllent, lhe I~luc ot" J < . .;c l.< ull leah"'lIioll in the nrdi,,:,,: COOT"': nfllt l ~ inc <i. \\il 110 1 Ie). ,h,'11 Ih..: \'~hlc;\1 whi~h Ihcse arc ~ Lll~J iUlhc nJblle..: 
Shce!. 

Ii) Fi llllrc l .001I .... !.:Jolrlo Ihe n":.lfe .1 ru ........ ' III L~kh . 

-._"'"' "'r'~::Jn~\::~~I~:~o~rJll;:Cl~;'::'!.:;II~~~T~~II;~ . 

... t~~ \h I~d "'lu:.'Unlh~n~;" ... "a 
clltl"Klo) ([)ilTClor l 

1IJ1:'\;·ll'}tNt 5SJl (Ilt:'\;_o~ ) 
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1t&1AaJt1q; thltQfl¥r 151 q,fqfaq 
~ qlfi»fGQq, ,.ff Qttft 

'IT«f .-A 4~• ah itdld&i qfl4fcfj 
Office of the Director General of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India 

4, cfl-1&q1ft '3Qlauq mtf, ~~ 4, Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Marg, NewDelhi-110002 

~@l/tt.uft.lU~.~/IASEL-AA/83-16/2024-25/ / 6;J. 

~ll , 
Pt&:<fcf>, 
,(ct>T.:w \:flct>e.1Rt-~1<+-1& '<cffta+.a Rtflle8, 
~-4, ~ ~ch: m, +11$d, 
';f( Faffil -110017. 

~.:Wict>:i.#:06.2024 

f fcltitq: 31 ~ 2024 cf>1" ~J.illd qt{~ fa'Q ~~<f>l.-l '1t<f>cllRl-~1~~l4 Q<RtU~~ Rl~l6 
~ fcl-dlq fclq~on tR $q;:fl ~ 2013 cp'l-~ 143 (6) (b) $ ata,fa 1-JRa$ 
Flti?lcf> ~ l-f(ilcl-&14-0ai<f> cp'l- fecqffl1qj I 

~ ~~<t>,.-l '1tcf>~"',Rt-~R~1q Qcmu~a R1f&te5 ~ 31 ~ 2024 cf)1" ~l-f,ca qlSf $ 

Fcl-dlri fclq~on ~ $q;:fl ~ 2013 cp'l-~ 143 (6) (b) ~ ata,fa 1-fl«f $ Ati3icf> ~ 

l-f(ilcl-&fQ~afq) cp'l- fecqffl,rii 3f~~d cfR" ~ t I 
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• 

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 

SECTtON 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS .. OF IR~ON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

• The preparation of financial statements of IRCON Akloli-Shirsad Expressway 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing 

opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent 

audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of 

the Act. ·This is stated to have been done by them vide 'their Revised Audit Report dated 
·, ~... 

f 

31 May 2024 "Yhich supersedes th~ir earlier Audit Report dated 10 May 2024., 
.. '. ... ,. J • • ~ .. - .. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 
,,I ~""' 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of IRCON Akloli-Shirsad Expressway 

I Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This 

supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access. to the working 

papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor 

and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. 

In view of the revisions made in the Statutory Auditor's report, to give effect to 

some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further 

comments to offer upon or· supplement to the Statutory Auditors' report under Section 

143(6)(b j of the Act. 

' 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: 2..4--.06.2024 

.. 
, . ' For and on the behalf of the 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

Dr. Nilotpal li0'!nt1 

Directqr General of 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 

---
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 IRCON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
(‘IrconASEL’) 

------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Registered & Corporate Office: 

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017, India 
Tel.: +91-11-29565666 | Fax: +91-11-26522000, 26854000 

E-mail id: cospv.ircon@gmail.com 
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